DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors hereby present the 43 Annual Report and Audited financial statement for the year
ended 31° March 2023.

Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

; Rs. In lakh
Financial Result Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Revenue from operations 2764.73 476.32
Other Income 89.68 157.47
Total Revenue 2854.41 633.79
Total Expense 196.90 110.84
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 2657.51 522.95
Tax Expenses 649.84 90.23
Profit /(Loss) After Tax 2007.67 432.73
Other Comprehensive income (178.57) 103.46
Total Comprehensive income 1829.10 536.19
EPS (Rs.) Basic 192.01 56.29
Diluted 192.01 56.29
Equity Capital 95.26 95.26
‘General Reserve : 22453 23.76
Retained Earnings 6550.32 5,144.95

Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affair:
The Company is mainly engaged in investment in shares and securities and is registered with Reserve

of India as Non-Banking financial Company (NBFC) under the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934. Your
Company reported a profit of Rs. 2007.67 lakhs vis-a-vis profit of Rs. 432.73 lakhs in the previous
year. Total revenue increased from Rs. 633.79 lakhs in previous year to Rs. 2854.41 lakhs in the

current year.
Dividend

In order to conserve the resources, the directors’ do not propose to declare any dividend for the
vear under report. The Company has accumulated reserves of Rs.9067.13 lakhs as on date.

Change in the nature of business, if any

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future

There are no such pending matters.




Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurring between March 31, 2023 and the date of this Report of the Directors.

Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associates

The details of the Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ Associate companies are annexed as Annexure — I of
the report.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has in place an established internal control system designed to ensure proper
recording of financial and operational information and compliance of various internal controls and
other regulatory and statutory compliances.

Share Capital

The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 95,25,950. During the year under
review, your Company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments.

Risk Management

The Board members were informed about risk assessment and minimization procedures after which
the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management
plan for the company.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company comprised of the following Directors as on date:

1. Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat - Managing Director
2. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat - Director

3. Mr. Prakash Bachhawat — Director

4. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia — Independent Director

5. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain — Independent Director

6. Mrs. Sarla Baid — Director

Mrs. Sarla Baid (DIN — 09466531) is liable to retire by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

- The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in compliance with
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat - Managing Director
b) Mr. Pradip Kumar Bera - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
¢) Ms. Rajni Mishra-Company Secretary




Audit Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

1. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, Independent Director (Chairman)
2. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat — Director & Member

3. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain -Independent Director & Member

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as follows:

1. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, Independent Director (Chairman)
2 Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat — Director & Member
3. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain -Independent Director & Member

The Company's Remuneration Policy 1is available on the Company's website
www.deeplokfinancialservices.com.

stakeholders Relationship Committee

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as follows:
1. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, Independent Director (Chairman)
2. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat — Director & Member
3. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain -Independent Director & Member

Meetings of Board and Committees:

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Board met 7 times on 30.05.2022, 20.06.2022, 12.08.2022,
16.09.2022, 14.11.2022, 07.12.2022 and 14.02.2023.

Audit Committee Meetings

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Committee met 4 times on 30.05.2022, 12.08.2022,
14.11.2022 and 14.02.2023.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the financial year 2022-2023, the committee met once in the year on 20.06.2022.

stakeholders Relationship Committee

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Committee met once in the year on 14.02.2023.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors of your Compan\) have given declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board also hereby
confirms that in its opinion, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions /
criteria specified under the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and also are




independent of the management. The Independent Directors have also registered themselves in the
databank with the Institute of Corporate Affairs of India as per Rule 6(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014. The declaration was placed and nated by
the Board in its meeting held on 29.05.2023. The independent directors meeting in term of Schedule
IV to the companies Act, 2013 was held on 14.12.2022.

Annual Evaluation of Boards Performance

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board

committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the companies Act, 2013.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors
on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board
processes, information and functioning, etc. Whereas, the performance of the committees was
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of criteria
such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

In a separale meeling ol independenl direclors, performance of non-independent directors, the
Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors.

At the Board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors and meeting of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its committees, and
individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done
by the entire Board, excluding the independent directors being evaluated.

Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the Nomination, Remuneration and
Evaluation Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees in terms of
the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The said policy which has been
approved by the Board outlines the appointment criteria and qualifications, the term/ tenure of the
Directors on the Board of Company and the matters related to remuneration of the Directors. The
policy is available at Company’s website at www.deeplokfinancialservices.com

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has in place a vigil mechanism/whistle blower Policy details of which are available on
the Company's website www.deeplokfinancialservices.com

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All transactions entered into with related parlies as defined under the Companies Act, 2013
during the financial year were in the ordinary course of Business and on arm’s length basis.
Declaration for Related Party Transactions in terms of Form AOC-2 is enclosed and marked as

Annexure — II.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The particulars of loans guarantees and investments made in securities under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 has
been provided in the financial statements of the Company.




Disclosure under Section 197 (12) and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2016

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2016 is given in Annexure - IIl forming part of the Directors’ Report.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Proviso under Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Annual Return is available
on the Company's website at www.deeplokfinancialservices.com and may be accessed through the
web-link at https://deeplokﬁnancialservices.com/download/annualreports/annualretum-22—23.pdf

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Your Company does not have any activity relating to Conservation of Energy and Technology
Absorption and also there has been no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the financial

year under review.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors of
your Company confirm that: -

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
of the Company for that period;

(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(vi) There is a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, and as such, there are no outstanding
deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended.

Listing

The Equity Shares of the Company continues to be listed with Calcutta Stock Exchange and the
annual listing fees has been paid upto 2023-2024.

Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company as the Company’s paid-up capital is less

than Rs.10 Crore. However, the Company suo-moto comply with most of its provisions.




Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The provisions of Sections 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility
are applicable to the Company. The details of the CSR activities is-enclosed and marked as Annexure-

V.

Audit and Auditors

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, M/s. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered
Accountants (ICAl Firm Registration No. 323734EF) was appointed as the Auditors of the Company
from conclusion of the 40" AGM until conclusion of the 45 AGM of the Company scheduled to be

held in the year 2025.

The members may note that consequent to the changes made in the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide
notification dated May 7, 2018, the proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
explanation to sub-rule 7 of Rule 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
requirement for ratification of Auditors appointment at every AGM has been done away. Therefore,
the requirement of ratifying the appointment of M/s. J. B. S. & Company., as the Auditors of the
Company at the every AGM does not arise.

Your Company has received a certificate from M/s. J. B. S. & Company., Chartered Accountants
confirming their eligibility to continue as Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of
Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. They have also confirmed
that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) as required under the provisions of Regulation 33 of the Listing

Regulations.

The Auditor's Report on the financial statements for the financial year 2022-23 does not contain any
modified opinion or adverse remarks.

Secretarial Audit & Observations:

Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by Mr. Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company
Secretary (ACS-32891, CP No.- 14664) in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report is attached as Annexure =V and forms part of
this Report of the Directors and does not contain any observation / adverse remark.

Internal Audit & Controls

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, M/s. Shyamsukha Associates, Chartered Accountants was the Internal Auditor for the
Company during the financial year.

Internal Auditors’ findings are discussed and suitable corrective actions are taken as per the
directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

Cost Audit & Cost Records

The provisions for conducting cost audit and / or maintaining cost records as per the Act, does not
apply to your Company during the financial year under report.




There was no case of any fraud reported during the financial year under report.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

No case has been reported under this Act for the financial year under report.

Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors hereby affirms that your Company has adhered to the Secretarial Standards
as prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the financial year under report.

Other disclosures:

(a) The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement proposal with any Bank or
financial institution during the year.

(b) As per available information, no application has been filed against the Company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code ,2016 nor any proceedings thereunder is pending as on
31.03.2023

(c) Company has not received any loan from Directors during the financial year under report.

(d) There is no employee drawing remuneration more than Rs. 1.02 Crore per annum or Rs.8.50
Lakh per month or part of the month during the year under report.

(e) The Company has no outstanding towards any MSME entity as on 31.03.2023.

(f) Agreement that subsist under Clause 5A to para A of Schedule lil to the Listing Regulations: None.

(g) Particulars of Senior Management including the changes therein since the close of the previous

financial year: None

Acknowledgement

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation of assistance and co-operation received
from bankers, lenders, suppliers, customers, Government authorities, employees & other stake

holders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Kolkata

Date: 11.08.2023 Y -:ﬁ”’ @/Q C/{UIUV:\_\_J;

ndra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendar Kumar Bachhawat
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820




ANNEXURE - |

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with

Rule 5 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ Associate

companies/ Joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Nil

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of Associate

WOODSIDE FASHIONS LIMITED

Latest Audited Balance Sheet date

31 March 2023

Shares of Associate held by the company on the year end
No.

5,39,000

Amount of investment in Associate Company

Rs. 134.75 lacs

Extent of Holding %

23.96 %

Description of how there is significant influence

Due to Shareholding

Reason why the Associate is not consolidated

N. A.

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per recent
audited Balance sheet

Rs.3247.77 lacs

Profit/ Loss for the Year

Rs.416.17 lacs

Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 99.72 lacs

Not considered in Consolidation

Rs.316.45 lacs

DIN: 00129471

ra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Managing Director Director

DIN: 001258820

Ro«%{wi M; gl Pradd uman Preya,

Rajni Mishra

Pradip Kumar Bera

Place: Kolkata Company Secretary CFO
Date: 29.05.2023 Membership No.: A42928 PAN: AKQPB9617E




ANNEXURE — I

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL

{All the transactions are related its main business activities and are at arm’s length / “Material Contracts”
has been taken in terms of definition under Securities and exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015}

Place: Kolkata _ &%kﬁ (\"3“1‘;4 Q_/Ukﬁ L.J:_D‘P

Date: 11.08.2023

ndra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
/ Managing Director Director
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820




ANNEXURE — 11l

— s s s Faes AR rES ey SO

READ WITH RULE B{1] &F FHE SMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

Name of the Director / CEO | Designation (i) (ii)

/ CFQO / Company Secretary

/ Manager | Ratio of the remuneration of | Percentage increase in
each director to the median | Remuneration  during
remuneration of the employees | 2022-23
of the Company for the financial
year 2022-23

Mr. Surendra Kumar Managing 14.08:1 NIL

Bachhawat Director

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Director - -

Bachhawat

Mr. Prakash Bachhawat Director = . -

Mr. Pradip Kumar Bera CFO 1.28:1 18.14%

Ms. Rajni Mishra CS 0.93:1 6.72%

Sl. No. | Description Remarks

jii. the percentage increase in the median | 6.51%

remuneration of employees in the financial year;

iv. the number of permanent employees on the rolls of | 8
company;
v. average percentile increase already made in the | Average Salary increase of non-

salaries of employees other than the managerial | managerial employees — 20.86%
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof Average Salary increase of managerial
and point out if there are any exceptional employees — 1.59%

circumstances for increase in the managerial

remuneration;

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration to managerial personnel referred to above is as per

remuneration policy of the Company.




PARTICULARS OF ENMIPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(1Z} OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE 5(2) and 5{3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL]

AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

It is hereby affirmed that:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

No employee was in receipt of remuneration for the year in aggregate of more than Rs. 1.02
Crores (if employed throughout the financial year);

No employee was in receipt of remuneration for any part of the year at a rate which in aggregate
was more than Rs. 8.5 lacs per month (if employed for a part of the financial year);

No employee was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director of
Whole-time Director or Manager nor holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent
children more than two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

Top Ten Employees in terms of Remuneration drawn for F.Y. 2022-23:

Sl. | Name Designation | Remuneration | Nature of Qualification | Date of Age | Last % of Whether
No. (Ks.) Employment | and Commencement Employment | equity | relative
Experience of Employment Held shares | ofany
held Director
/
Manager
1 Surendra Managing 30,00,000 Contractual B.com 22.02.2004 64 - 86,632 Yes
Kumar Director
Bachhawat
2 Pradip CFO 2,72,729 Permanent B.Com./ 01.07.2005 60 - Nil No
Kumar 15yrs
Bera
3 Ashok Accounts 2,64,754 Permanent B.Com./ 01.04.2000 56 - Nil No
Gorai Assistant 20yrs
4 Rajni Company 1,98,500 Permanent CS. 15.03.2021 35 - Nil No
Mishra Secretary
5 Kalyan Office 2,27,714 Permanent B.Com. 01.07.2012 44 - Nil No
Sardar Assistant
6 Ajoy Office 1,69,400 Permanent H.S. 01.01.2014 58 = Nil No
Ghosh Assistant
i Rajesh Taxation 7,00,492 Permanent | M.Com 01.03.2018 32 - Nil No
Agarwal executive
8 Debraj Staff 2,88,580 Permanent B.Com 18.05.2018 35 - Nil No
Patra




Annexure |V

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S
REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR COMMENCING ON OR AFTER THE 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2020

1

Brief outline on CSR Policy of

the Company

In line with ther'I;To;'-igi-bl-]ﬁsﬁofiﬂilieiéompal{ies Act, 2013, the Company
has framed its CSR policy towards enhancing welfare measures of
the society and the same has been approved by the CSR Committee
of the Board. The Company also gives preference to the local area
and areas around which it operates for spending the amount
earmarked for CSR activities. The Company has proposed to
undertake activities as mentioned under Schedule VII of Companies
Act, 2013, inter alia, activities relating to promoting
education, promoting health care including preventive health
care, gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes
and hostels for women and orphans, setting up old age homes,
day care centres and such other facilities for senior citizens and
measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward groups and training to promote rural
sports and nationally recognised sports. The Company has
adopted a CSR policy and is bound to adhere to the same.

2 Composition of CSR Committee:
Sl Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of meetings of
No. Nature of meetings of CSR CSR Committee attended
Directorship Committee held during the year
during the year
Mr.Hemraj Kathotia Independent Director 2 2
Mr.Surendra Kumar Bachhawat | Managing Director 2 2
Mr.Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Director 2 2
3 Provide the web-link(s) where
Composition of CSR Committee, CSR
Policy and CSR Projects | deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policy/csr-policy-1.pdf
approved by the board are disclosed
on the website of the company
4 Provide the executive summary along

with  web-link(s)
Assessment of CSR Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule

8, if applicable.

Impact Not applicable




(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.

(b) Two }?(?r&.@ﬂl of average neﬁ‘oﬁl of the company as per sub-section (35) of section 135, | 6.72 ,
(c;‘ Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the pre\fi"o_us Nil
financial years.

(d) Amount’required o be set-off for the financial year. if any.

2020-2021 0.11

20212022 0.04

(¢) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(¢)-(d)]. 657

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 14.00

Project).

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil

(¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil

(d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. 14.00

l (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Amount

Spent for Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
the Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5)
Financial Year. sub- of section 135.

(Rs. In Lakhs) section (6) of section 135.

Date of
Amount. . Name of the Fund | Amount, Date of transfer.
transfer.
14.00 Nil INA : INA INA NA
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SI. Neo. Particular Amount
(Rs. In lakhs)
¢y (2) )
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of  [6.72
section 135

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 14.00

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 7.28

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nl

previous Financial Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 7.28




‘ 7. Details of Unspent Corporate Sacial Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: Not Applicable

L

I £, 3 4 5 6 7 8
SL Preceding Amount Balance | Amount Amount transferred to a Amount Deficiency,
No. Financial transferred to | Amountin | Spentin Fund as specified under remaining to
Year(s) Unspent CSR Unspent the Schedule VII as per be if
Account Financial second proviso to sub- spent in any
under sub- CSR Year (in section (5) of section 135, succeeding
section (0) of Account Rs) if any Financial
section 135 under sub- Years
(in Rs.) section (6) (in Rs)
of
section 135 Amount Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
(in Rs.)
1 FY-1
2 FY-2
3 FY-3
8 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired No
through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Iinancial Year:
If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount
spent in the Financial Year:
SL Short Pin codc of Date of Amount of Details of entity/ Authority/
No. particulars of the creation CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
the property or property amount
:msei(f:) or asset(s) spent
[including
complete
address and
location of the
property]
1) @) 3) (4) (3) (6)
CSR Name Registered |
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal
Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)




9 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed |
to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
subsection (5) of section 135

' ad\/\aw‘;j%’

Wiathobe

Managing Director

Chairman CSR Committee

Surendra Kumar Bachhawat

Hemraj Kathotia

Dated:11.08.2023
Place: Kolkata




Annexure V

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Deeplok Financial Services Limited
Ideal Plaza, South Block

2nd Fleor,S. 207 & 209

11/1, Sarat Bose Road

Kolkata — 700 020

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
Deeplok Financial Services Limited having its Registered Office at Ideal Plaza,
South Block, 2nd Floor, S. 207 & 209, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata — 700020,
West Bengal (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended 31.03.2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to

the reporting made hereinafter.




Auditors’ Responsibility

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on existence of
adequate Board process and compliance management system, commensurate
to the size of the Company, based on these secretarial records as shown to me
during the said audit and also based on the information furnished to me by the
officers’ and the agents of the Company during the said audit. '

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the
best of my understanding. to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed, provide a

reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and bases of financial
records, books of accounts and decisions taken by the Board and by various
committees of the Company during the period under scrutiny. | have checked
the Board process and compliance management system to understand and to
form an opinion as to whether there is an adequate system of seeking approval
of respective committees of the Board, of the Board, of the members of the
Company and of other authorities as per the provisions of various statutes as

mentioned hereinafter.

Wherever required | have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of the laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of compliance procedures on test

basis.
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I report that, | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended 31.03.2023 according to the provisions of (as amended) :

(i)

(d)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there

under;
Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of Company

Secretaries of India;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules

made there under;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws

framed there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulation made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulation, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.




| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has specifically complied

with the provisions of the following Act:

1. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (pertaining to NBFC matters)

to the extent of its applicability to the Company during the financial year
ended 31.03.2023 and my examination and reporting is based on the
documents, records and files as produced and shown to and the information
and explanations as provided to me by the Company and its management and
to the best of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the
different enactments upon the Company. Further, to the best of my knowledge
and understanding there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with its size and operation to monitor and ensure compliances

with applicable laws.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

During the period under review, provisions of the following
regulations/guidelines/standards were not applicable to the Company:

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018;

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(iii)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2018;

(v)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021.




| further report that:

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper .
balance of Execut'ive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 'and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried

out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting

and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

(c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’
views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

(d)There are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and

guidelines.
| Sd/-
(Asit Kumar Labh) Place: Kolkata
Practicing Company Secretary Dated: 11.08.2023

ACS —32891 / C.P. No. — 14664
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
60, BENTINCK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
KOLKATA - 700 069

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the In-AS Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Indi-AS Standalone financial statements of DEEPLOK FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED(“the Company”), which comprise the Stand nlone bulunee sheat as al 31yt
March 20023, and the Standalone stalement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone statement of cash
flows for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind-AS Slandalone fmancial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and nther evplanatory infornalio
(heremnatter reterred to as “the Ind-AS Standalone Tinancial Sta lements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind-AS Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, and profit for the year, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Dasis {ur Optian

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audiling (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind-AS Standalonc
Finantial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind-AS Standalone financial
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Return
but does not include the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor’s report

thereon,

Our opinion on the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility
Is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Managemenl’s Responsibility for the Ind-AS Standalonc Financial Stalements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind-AS Standalone
financial statemenls Uiat glve a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Tnd AS and other accounling princtples generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

Q-
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financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind-AS Standalone
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind-AS Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind-AS Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. A T

@



Continuation Sheet

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our Auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presenlalion, structure and content ot the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statemenls, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Standalone
financial statementr ropresent the undedying Lunguctons and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Audilor's Repott) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure - A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. P

Q@
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The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind-AS Standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adeq uacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in
its slandalone financial statements [Refer Note No. 24(1) to its Standalone Financial
Statements]

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; R

%
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(B)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any petson or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(C)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A) and
(B) above, contain any material misstatement.

iv.  The Campany has neither declared nor paid any dividend during Lhe year.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act.

For ].B.S. & Company
= .- ~_ Chartered Accountants

'FRN: 323734E

B Guaks

Dillip Shaha, CA
Farlner
Membership No: 312458

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2023
UDIN: 23312458BGVOKID9385
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ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure A referred to in paragréph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the Ind-AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

(1) a)(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment;

a)(B)The Company does not have any intangible assets. Hence, clause (a) (B) of Paragraph
3(i) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b)The Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the periodicity of the physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) Based on our audit procedure and the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the title deeds of all immovable properties disclosed in financial statements
are held in the name of the company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Hence, clause (d) of Paragraph 3(i)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, no proceeding have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at March 31,2023 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made

thereunder.

(i) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the inventories held by the company include stock of shares and
securities in dematerialized form; accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (ii)(a) of the
said Order is not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the company has not been sanctioned any working capital
limit from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence,
sub- clause (b) of Paragraph 3 (i) (b) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iif) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

(v)

examination of the records of the Conipany, the Company has made Investments in, and

granted loans or advances in nature of unsécured loans during the year to companies,

firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. The Company has not provided
any guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties during the year.

a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the principal business of the company is to give loans,
hence reporting under paragraph 3 (iif)(@) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b) Bascd upon the audit procedures pertormed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
company’s interest.

¢) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, in respect of loans granted schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of inleresl Lius been stipulated and there are regular receipts.

d) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in
respect of loans given.

e) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the principal business of the company is to give loans,
hence reporting under paragraph 3 (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

f) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not granted any loan and providing guarantces and securities under section
185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company is a Non-Ranking Financial Institution,
hence the provisions under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 with regard to Loan and
Investment are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company las not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.
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As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried
on by the Company. Thus, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and
Services Tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable have been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities and there are
no arrear of undisputed statutory dues as at March 31,2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
dues of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax and other material statutory dues which have
not been deposited as on 31st March, 2023 with appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute except the following:

=
| Name | Nature of | Principal Amount Period to | Forum where
[ of Dues Amount paid* (Rs.) | which amount | Dispute is ‘
Statute under relates ‘ Pending

-~ dispute (Rs.) |

| |
‘ Income Income 1,28,872/- 32,600/ - AY.2017-18 | Commissioner
| Tax  Act, | Tax of Income Tax ‘
| 1961 } | (Appeals) -

| | Kolkata II |

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the books of accounts and other records, the company does not have any transactions
unrecorded in the books of account and which were surrendered or disclosed as income in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reporting of other information
under clause 3 (viii) of the said Order is not required.

(ix) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from lenders.
Hence, reporting of information w.r.t. default on account of repayment of loan or interest
under clause 3 (ix) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or

B,
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financial institutions or other lender. Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (b) of
the said Order is not applicable.

¢) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, as mentioned in (ix)(a) above, the company not taken any loans or other
borrowings from lenders. Hence, reporting of information w.r.t. utilization & diversion of fund
under clause 3 (ix) (c) of the said Order is not applicable.

d) As mentioned in (ix)(a) above, the company not taken any loans or other borrowings from
lenders. Hence, reporting of information whether funds raised on short term basis have been
utilized for long term purposes under clause 3 (ix) (d) of the said Order is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the other records, the company has not taken any fund from any entily or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its associates. Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (e)
of the said Order is not applicable.

f) Rased upon tho audit procedurcs petfoimed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its associate companies. Hence, reporting of other information under
clause 3 (ix) (f) of the said Order is not applicable.

(x) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, paragraph 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) a)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

b)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and ex planations given  hy
the management, no teputl under sub-section (12) ot section 143 of the Companies Act hag
been tiled by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto the date of
this report.
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¢) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, there have been no whistle blower complaints received by the Company

during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the. Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by,
the management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind-AS Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the

nature and size of the business.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed, we report that the of the Internal audit report
has been taken into due consideration while determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
Or persons connected with him as per the provisions of Sec 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, the company is required to be registered undet
section 45 JA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained.

b)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and hence reporting under

Paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) is not applicable. P
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(xvii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current
period and immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the
year. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xix) Based According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realizations of financial assets and payment
of the financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to belief that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit teporl it company 1s not capable ot meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a‘period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

(xx) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company does not have any unspent amount under sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3 (xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) This is the audit report of standalone financial statements, hence, reporting under clause 3
(xxi) of the said Order in respect of qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors is not applicable.

For ].B.S. & Company

04~ Chartered Accountants
157 TN FRN: 323734F
' / Dillip Shaha, " CA
Partner

Wembetship No: 312458

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2023
UDIN:23312458BGVOKD9385
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEEPLOK
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind-AS Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
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of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind~-AS Standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind-
AS Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of Ind-AS Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance wilh authorizations of managemeul and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
Ind-AS Standalone financial statements. ‘

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Couwpany has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
tepuiling were operating ettectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over

@
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financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

J.B.S. & Company

A OMB Chartered Accountants
/o) FRN: 323734E
| Dillip\Shaha, "CA

Partner

Membership No: 312458

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2023
UDIN:23312458BGVOKD9385



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
I ASSETS
1) Financial Assets
(@) Cash and cash equivalents 4 31.89 56.22
(b) Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 4 8.21 416.17
() Loans 5 1,100.06 1,901.30
(d) Investments 6 7,902.50 4,922.21
(e) Other Financial assets 7 121.04 61.33
9,163.70 7,357.23
) Non-financial Assets
(@) Inventories 8 019 0.33
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 9 0.07 -
(© Property, Plant and Equipment 10 4.36 5.36
4.62 5.69
Total Assets 9,168.32 7,362.92
I LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
A LIABILITIES
m Non Financial Liabilitics
(a) Current tax Liability (Net) 1 - 1.61
®) Drovisionn 12 275 +.570
(© Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 1.89 21.71
d) Other non-financial liabilities 14 1.29 1.55
5.92 29.62
B EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 15 95.26 95.26
(b) Other Equity 16 9,067.13 7,238.04
9,162.39 7,333.30
Total Liabilities and Equity 9,168.32 7,362.92

Tho accompanying notos 1 24 are an integral part of these Financial Statemento.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For |.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

"Bl Sredn o

CA Dillip Shaha
(Partner) ; ]
Membership No. 312458 (St | @)

Place : Kolkata
Date:

IJ. B. S. & COMPANY]

Chartered Accountamis

—

N —=3
] / 2 9 MAY 2023 f

| KOLKATA

e e ettt

For and on behalf of the Board

~@%¢auUJQg

I ’)[‘iuU\(‘;LL;:('V

Director
A DIN: 00129471

Rog'lm M; 2hre..

Rajni Mishra
Company Secretary

rendra Kumar Bachhawat

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Director
DIN: 00129820

Pradip Kumar Bera
Chief Financial Officer



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. 2022-2023 2021-2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 17 54592 451.75
Dividend Income 18 2,218.81 15.44
Net gain on fair value changes 19 - 9.14
Total Revenue from Operation 2,764.73 476.32
Other income 20 89.68 157.47
Total Income 2,854.41 633.79
EXPENSES
Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stock 0.14 0.06
Net loss on fair value changes 21 67.19 0.00
Employee benefits expense 22 53.20 50.72
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10 1.00 141
Other expenses 23 75.38 58.64
Total Expenses 196.90 110.84
Profit/(loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax 2,657.51 522.95
Exceptional Items = =
Profit/(loss) before Tax 2,657.51 522,95
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 649.99 94.34
Deferred Tax 0.32 (3.52)
Earlier Years (0.47) (0.59)
649.84 90.23
Profit for the Year 2,007.67 432.73
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value FOVCI equity instruments (198.72) 118.55
Income tax relating to these items 20.14 (15.08)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (178.57) 103.46
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,829.10 536.19
Earning Per Shares
Basic and Diluted 192.01 56.29
Nominal Value Per Share 10.00 10.00

The accompanying notes 1-24 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For ].B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants —
Firm Registration No: 323734E~

%‘\ \\.up Yolray )
CA Dillip Shaha -3

(Partner)
. Membership No. 312458

MAL 2023

lace:lg}ll_c_‘zq_a N

ndra Kumar Bachhawat
Director
DIN: 00129471

hlsisg A s T Rﬂ:;“’"ﬁ’\’@\»

hra

Company Secretary

N For and on behalf of the Board

{,’:t(m*;%ﬂ

UU\QML}

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Director
DIN: 00129820

Pradip Kumar Bera
Chief Financial Officer




Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs)

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
PARTICULARS
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax : 2,657.51 522.95
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 1.00 141
Provisions for standard and sub standard assets (2.00) 1.71
Net Changes in Fair Market Value 67.19 (9.14)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investment (89.68) (152.71)
Dividend Income (2,218.81) (2,242.30) (15.44) (174.17)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 415.21 348.79
Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital :
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Asset and other assets (59.72) (26.57)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Bank Balance 407.96 2,295.15
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory 0.14 0.06
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liability (1.88) 346.50 1.80 2,270.44
Cash used for Operations 761.72 2,619.23
Direct Taxes Paid:
Income Taxes Paid 649.59 82.95
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating Activities (A) 112.13 2,536.28
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loan Disbursed, Recd,& Repayment recd.(net) 801.24 (685.48)
Sale of Fixed Assets & CWIP - =
Fasahaco ol kood Acuoly
(Purchase) / Sale nf Tnvestments (3,156 51) (2,438 44)
Dividend Received 2,218.81 1544
Net Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) from Investing Activities (B) (136.46) (3,108.48)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) from Financing Activities (C) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (24.33) (572.20)
Add: Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 56.22 628.42
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 31.89 56.22
Notes:
a) Cash and cash equivalent under financial asset at note no.4 are cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of drawing cash flow statement. Therefore reconciliation statement required under para 45 of Ind AS 7 is not required.
b) Figures in the brackets are cash outflow/income as the case may be.

The accompanying notes 1-24 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For ].B.S & Company ) For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants - )
Firm Registration No: 323731 _&
\ f J [l
(El\ ) Yoba _» / {;D /) eun e =gy
CA Dillip Shaha ’ \_/Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
(Pariner) 4 Director Dircctor
Meinbesship No. 712450 // DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820

i ' " v
- g “ AU YLy
Place: Kﬂl‘kﬂta — T —— T — Y\I‘ M; ﬁ}m pr('-tyg}’t’ ~ L"{'M ﬂ)‘L : 1
Date: b, & COMBAN jni Mishra ’ Pradip Kumar Bera

- CULLtpily Secteidry LY FUBIIAL UtHCRE




Deeplok Financial Services Limiled
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Standalone Statement of Change In Equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

A.  Equity Share Capital
(1) Current reporting period (Rs. In Lakhs}
Changes in 5 G
- Equity Share Restate-d bélance at | Jhanges o equity Balance at the end
Balance at the beginning of the 5 the beginning of the [share capital
- . Capital due to . . of the current
current reporting period i = current reporting during the current . 8
prior period . reporting period
period year
erTors
95.26 - - - 95.26
(2) Previous reporting period
Shanges in Restated balance at | Changes in equi
=R Equity Share = 8 eq ty Balance at the end
Balance at the beginning of the X the beginning of the share capital n
revious reporti eriod Sl Zuc S revious reportin; during the finerraiods
P porting p prior period P . P s . # reporting period
period previous year
errors
95.26 - - - 95.26
B.  Other Equity

1) Current reporting Period

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Other
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Description Income Total
Retained Earnings Secu.r'ities Amalgamation Special Reserve General ) Equity
Premium Reserve Reserve instruments
Balance at 01 April 2022 5,144.95 356.00 129.29 1,365.11 23.76 218.93 7,238.04
- | Profit for the year 2,007.67 - - - - - 2,007.67
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - (178.57) (178.57)
Gross Balance 7,152.62 356.00 129.29 1,365.11 23.76 40.36 9,067.13
Less: Appropriations
| - Transfer to General Reserve (200.77) = - - 200.77 = -

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act) (401.53) - - 401.53 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 6,550.32 356.00 129.29 1,766.64 22453 40.36 9,067.13
2) Previous reporting period

Other

Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Description Income Total
. . Securities Amalgamation i General Equi
Retained Eamnings Premium Reierve Special Reserve Reserve insl::.lmteynls
Balance at 01 April 2021 4,798.77 356.00 129.29 1,278.56 23.76 115.46 6,701.85
Profit for the year 432.73 - - - - - 43273
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - 103.46 103.46
Gross Balance 5,231.50 356.00 129.29 1,278.56 23.76 218.93 7,238.04
Less: Appropriations

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act) (86.55) - - 86.55 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 5,144.95 356.00 129.29 1,365.11 23.76 218.93 7238.04

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

N -
“\8\\\&‘9 Lodro ~ 3
CA Dillip Shaha 4~ vd

(Partner)
Membership No. 312458

Place : Kolkata NS =
Date: '

P
For aid on behalf of the Board

igector
DIN: 00129471

Ragm! M
Rogrmt Migboa .
Rajhi Mishra
Company Secretary

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Director
DIN: 00129820

Prraorg;oobcmm_/)}‘/m~

Pradip Kumar Bera
Chief Financial Officer



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Significant Accounting Palicies
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General Information

Deeplok Financial Services Limited (the ‘Company') is a public limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in India. The equity shares of the
Company are listed . The registered office of the Company is located at 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, South Block, 2nd Floor, Kolkata 700020, West Bengal,
India

The Company is mainly engaged in investment in shares and securities

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates

The financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 29th May 2023

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below Such accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements unless otherwise indicated

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division
(11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind
AS. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakh

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act , 2013 ( the Act), Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards )
Amendment Rules, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act

The Conmnany had heen nreparing its financial statements npta the year 31 March M9 as per Campanies (Acconnting Standard) Ridas 204 and athar

relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as Previous GAAP/Indian GAAP).

Measw enmenl uf falt values
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Paer value measurementa under Ind Al oarc eategamed 0 b cd 102 o 0 T vy o g e i b e degneds o e D widie iocmaces vl s e
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

a} Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date

b) 1evel 2: inputs are inputs, ather than quater prices inclnded within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and i

¢) Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measuremnent date.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgements, assumptions and estimates that affect the
reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of income and expenses for the reporting period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed as applicable in the respective notes to
accounts. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Future results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates
are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statemnents in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

Income Taxes:-
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India Significant judgements are involved in determining the provisions for income taxes including amount expected
to be paid or recovered for uncertain tax positions,

Summary of significant accounting policies
This nate pravides a list of the significant acrounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial staterments. These policies have been

vonistentlp apdied 1 all Qe gt pressnin ioless dlus wisa s el

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Financial
assets and habilities are 1nitially measured at fair value, lransaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue ot tinancial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

i)  Financial Assets

Subsequent Recognition

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing financial assets and the contractual terms of cash
Muw

The financial assets are classified in the following categories:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost,

b} financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss ( FVTPL), and

c) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ( FVOCI).



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Significant Accounting Policies

ii)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised coast. After initial measurement , such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method - The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less

provision for impairment, if any

Financial instruments measured at FVTPL
Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value plus transaction
costs as applicable. Fair value movements are recorded in Statement of Profit & Loss

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Investment in Bonds(other than Tax free) and Mutual fund
Investment in Equity Oriented Mutual Funds, Debt Oriented Mutual fund and Bonds(other than Tax free) are classified as FVTPL and measured

at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Investment in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Preference Shares
Investment in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Preference Shares are measured at Cost.

Investment in Equity
Investment in Equity are classified as FVTOCI and measured at fair value with all changes recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Investments in Associates
The Company has elected Lo measuie Tnvestiment in associales al cust.

Other Unquoted Equity Investments
The Company has elected to measure Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares at cost

De- recognition of financial assets
The company de- recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows for the financial assets expires or it transfer the

financial assets and such transfer qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 109- Financial instruments

All investments other than those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Only for Loans the implied approach of life time expected credit losses is recognised from initial recognition of the receivables as required by
Ind AS 109- financial instruments.
Impairment loss allowance recognised / reversed during the year is charged / written back to Statement of Profit & Loss

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

Tvpe of Financial asset Disclosure
Financial asset measured at amortised shown separately under the head
Cost “provisions” and not as a deduction from the

gross carrying amount of the assets

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Loan commitments and financial shown separately under the head
guarantee contracts “provisions”

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component and the Company cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment separately from those on the drawn component, the Company presents a combined loss allowance for both components under

“provisions”.

Financial liabilities

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value , net of transaction costs incurred . Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds ( net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payment on demand on the reporting date , the entity does not classify the liability as
current , if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue , not to demand payment as
a consequence of the breach.

For Trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date , the carrying amount approximates fair value to short-
term maturity of these instruments.



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Regislered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Significant Accounting Policies

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilites when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire or it
transfer the financial assets and such transfer qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 109- Financial instruments
All investments other Lhan those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of

impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and is written down immediately to its recoverable amount On disposal of

such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss

Offsetting Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset

the recognised amounts and the there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability subsequently. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of default,

insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counter party
3.2 Income recognition

a)  Interestincome
The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by considering all costs
and incomes attrihutable tn arquisitinn of a financial aceat nr assnmptian of 2 financial lishility and it rapracontc 2 rato that ovactly diczountc
cstimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/financial liability Lo the gioss canying amount uf a
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability

The Company recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other

than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as ‘stage 3', the Company recognises interest income on the
amortised cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR, If the financial asset is no lenger credit-impaired. the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a groas basis

Nelayad paymant intaraet (ponal intarart) daind on cuctomare for dolay in repaymente/nen paymont of contractual eashfloves in recognioed on

realisation
b) Recugnliion uf revenue from sale of goods or services

Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that reflects the considerations, to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer. excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue from contract with customer for rendering services is recognised at a point in time when performance obligation is satisfied,

¢)  Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have been established

3.3 Employee benefits

(a)  Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages, salaries and other benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet

{(b) Post employment obligations
Compensated absences
Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or enchased or contributed within the 12 months from the end of the year

are treated as short term employee benefits and the balances expected to be availed or enchased or contributed beyond 12 months from the

year end are treated as long term liability and are accounted on undiscounted basis

Other short term employee benefits
Shurr term omplnyee hanafite ara racagaend ac an oxponcec At por tho ‘_ompany'c cchamac baced on tho onpocted ebligabion on an

undiscounted basis,

3.4  Property, Plant & Equipment:
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at their original cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises cost of acquisition, cost of improvements,

borrowing costs and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to the condition for its intended use. Costs also include direct expenses incurred upto the

date of capitalization/ commissioning
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 01

April, 2019 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of all the property , plant and equipment

3.5 Depreciation
Depreciation has been provided on written down value method in accordance with the useful life of assets prescribed under Schedule- 1I of the

Companies Act, 2013.

36  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management

()
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Significant Accounting Policies

3.7

3.8
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheel when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, which is
expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and habilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period

Deferred 1ncome tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts in the financial staternents
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be

available to utilise those temporary differences and losses

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated in accordance with IND AS 33 on earnings per share. It is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year

attributable to equity share holders, by the weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Inventory
The inventory consists of shares held for trading purpose and are measured as per "Ind AS-2 Inventories" at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is

lower at the balance sheet date

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised only when:
(i)  anentity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and
{ii) itis probable that an outflow of resources embndying ecanamic henefits will be required ta settie the nhligation; and
(i} areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is material, the carrying
amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is

recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and

{ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the

present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of the income is virtually certain, related asset is recognised

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is
reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates
and joint ventures; and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude itemns which are not available for general use as on
the date of Balance Sheet.

Event after reporting date
Where the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such

events adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Y
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 4
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Cash in hand ( As certified by the Management) 024 0.20
Balance with banks
- in current Accounts 31.65 56.01
31.89 56.22
Other Bank Balances
- in Fixed & Term Deposits Account 8.2] 41617
(Maturity Period is more than 3 months but less than 12 months}
TOTAL 8.21 416.17
Note 5
Loans
Farticulars 31,03.2023 31032022
Al Amorised Cost [, In Lakhs) (R=. In Lakhs)
Secured -
Unsecured, considered good ( unless otherwise stated |
Loansto Bodmes Corporate
Conssdersd Good 1L 1.5900.00
Oihers
Advance 1o Stail 0os 130
{Recoverable in cash or in kind or value o be received thereof]
Credil Impaired
Consideted Doulbtiul S5.25 5625
l.ess : Bad Debis [ Refer Note no. 2449)] 3625 .
Less: Provision for Doubtful Assets - - G6.35
TOTAL 110000 159013
Note 6
Investment
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
{A) ARV ENMIEINS CATTISA AL LAIT Y AIUS LAFDUBH DIOLIL 01 1084
Investment i Bonds 4.200 &6 1,7551
Investment in NCD 1,858.93 756.25
Mulual Fumls 547 ¥4 1068 N9
(B) Investments carried at Fair Value Other Comprehensive Income
Fully paid Equity Shares (Quoted) 652,54 819.72
{ C) Investments carried at Amortised Cost
Equity Shares (Unquoted) 203.00 203.00
Non- Convertible Preference Shares (Quoted) 400.57 400.57
Less: Provision for fair value loss of investment [ Refer Note no. 24(10)} 400,57 - 400.57 -
Tax Free Bonds 359.64 359.64
TOTAL 7,902.50 4,922.21
Note 7
Other Financial Assets
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
[nterest Receivable on Bonds 6318 28.01
Interest Receivable on NCD 50.07 21.87
Interest Recelvable on Tax Free Bonds 1Y 7.75
Dividend Receivable - 032
Actausad Diununt v Tunin Dupndi (LY i)
Total 121.04 61.33
Notc 8
inventuries
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.032022
(K. I Lakdis) LS. Lt Lakis)
Closing Stock of Shares 0.19 033
TOTAL 019 0.33
Note 9
Current Tax Assets
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Advance Taxes (Net) 0.07
Total 0.07 -
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Note 10
Property, Plant & Equipment
Particalars Land & Building | Office Equipment Motor Cars Total
Tangible Assets
Cost/Deemed Cost
At 1st April 2021 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Additions - - = =
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2022 10.38 340 15.51 29.29
Additons E: = = E
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 10.38 3.40 15.51 29,29
Accumulated Depreciation
At Ist April 2021 7.88 3.25 11.38 2251
Depreciation Expense 012 - 1.29 141
Deduction B - - -
As at 31 March 2022 8.00 3.25 1267 23.92
Depreciation Expense 0.12 - 0.89 1.00
Deduction - -
As at 31 March 2023 812 3.25 13.56 24.92
Carrying Value
As at 1st April 2021 250 0.15 412 6.77
As at 31 March 2022 237 0.15 284 536
As at 31 March 2023 226 0.15 1.95 4.36
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 Investment 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A. |Quoted Securities
Investment in Fully paid up Equity Instruments -Valued
at FVOCI
Sl. No.|Name of the Securities E.V. No. of Units | (Rs.In Lakhs No. of Units (Rs. In Lakhs)
1 Bank of Baroda 2/ - - 5,000.00 5.58
2 |Bankof Maharashtra 10/- 50,000 12.38 - -
3 [Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 275/- 33,741 94.42 33,741 105.66
4 |Castrol India Limited 5/- = - 7,500 7.57
5 |Coal India Ltd 10/- 8,500 18.16 8,500 15.56
6 |Elpro Intérnational Limited 1/ 83,000 51.00 85,000 51.26
7 |GAIL (India) Limited 10/- 10,000 10.52 - -
8 |GAIL (India) Limited- Bonus Shares 10/- 5,000 5.26 - -
9 |GFL Lid 1/- 9,000 4.28 9,000 7.10
10  |Gujrat Fluro Chemical Ltd 1/- - - 800 21.94
11 |Hathway Cable and Datacom Limited 2/- 2,25,000) 29.14 - =
12 |Housing & Urban Development Corp. Ltd 10/- 48,000 20.76 48,000 15.72
13  |Indian Oil Corporation 10/- 15,000 11.69 15,000 17.84
14 |Indian Oil Corporation - Bonus Shares 10/- 39,000 30.38 21,000 24.98
15 |Inox Wind Energy Ltd 10/- 625 6.87 900 6.39
16 |International Conveyors Ltd 1/- 5,00,000 238.75 5,00,000 41525
17 |National Aluminum Co. Ltd 5/- 30,000 2352 30,000 36.54
10 |NWIIIC Liudied 10/- 2 29./5 /4,00l 2.5/
19 |NMDC Limited 1/- 15,000 16.73 15,000 2438
20 |NMDC Steel Limited 10/- 15,000 4.66 = -
21 |Reliance Capital Ltd 10/- 400 0.03 400 0.07
22 |Reliance Home Finance Ltd 10/- 400 0.01 400 0.02
23 |Tata Steel Ltd 10/- 4,330 452 433 5.66
24 |Tata Steel Ltd 10/- 22900, 23.93 2,290 29.93
25 |UCO Bank Ltd 10/- 65,000 15.80 65,000 7.70
652.54 819.72
Investment in Bond - Valued at FVTPL
1 U GOILS TR G 1Y Decdits 100 3,00,000 247.86 = -
2 |2.60% Fxpurt Tmport Bank of India 07Feb2024 £0.00.000 Y i .
S A 40% WABART Bornd 21Ju1dy IIAE N 250,00
4 ]5.14% NBARD 31Jan24 10,00,000 84 840.00 - -
5 |5.44% NBARD 05Feb2024 10,00.000 50 50000 - -
6 |7.77% Mational houaing Dusdk 02Ap12026 1,00,000 500 300.00 - -
7 |8 0% REC T4d Boand ?5Tine?N?4 10.00,000 18 180.00
8 |11.45% MeLECL Bonds-13I'LB2030 10,00,000 5 50.00 5 50.00
9 19.75% UPPL Bond - 20 Oct.2027 10,00,000 4 41.00 4 43.14
10 |6.10% GOI Bond 12JULY2031 1,00,000 1,500 1,392.00 1,500 1,422.38
11 |7.05% NHAI SR II 28SEP2041 10,00,000 20 200.00 20 200.00
4,290.86 1,715.51
Investment in NCD - Valued at FVTPL
1 |2% Un-sec Optionally Cov Deb - ] B Leasing Pvt.Ltd. 1,00,000 500 500.00 = -
2 16.83% HDFC Ltd 08] AN2031 10,00,000 10 98.11 10 100.00
3 |7.05% HDFC Ltd 01DEC2031 10,00,000 50 510.83 50 506.25
4 |7.25% L&T Ltd 24 APRL2023 10,00,000 20 200.00 - -
5 |8.75% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 08DEC2028 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
6 |5.32% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 30NOV2023 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
7 17.30% NMDC Steel Ltd 28AUG2025 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
8 |8.30% SBI Cards & Payment Serv Ltd 17May2023 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
9 |7.99% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12JUL2029 10,00,000 15 150.00 15 150.00
1,858.93 756.25
Investments in Non-Convertible Preference Shares -
Valued at Amortised Cost
1, |6:46% Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-24SEP22 15000/ - 1,335 200.47 1,335 200.47
2-{16.46% Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-150CT22 15000/ - 1,334 200.10 1,334 200.10
Less:-
Provision for fair value loss of investment (400.57) (400.57)
0 > j -
L= /




B |Investment in Tax Free Bonds- Valued at Amortlised
Cost
Sl No.|Name of the Company EV. No. of Units | (Rs.InLakhs)| No.of Units | (Rs.InLakhs)
1 |810% IRFC Tax Free Bond-23FEB27 1000/ - 600 589 600 5.89
2 |8.20% Hudco Tax Free Bond-5MAR27 1000/ - 132 1.36 132 1.36
3 |830% NHAI Tax Free Bond-25] AN27 1000/ - 1,931 19.35 1,931 19.35
4 |8.50% IIFCL Tax Free Bond- 12 NOV 33 1000/ - 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
5 8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-05FEB29 1000/~ 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
6 |8.51% Hudco Tax Free Bond-250CT28 1000/ - 2,000 20.00 2,000 20.00
7 18.66% IIFCL Tax Free Bond-22] AN34 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
8 |8.67% NHPC Tax Free Bond-2NOV33 1000/ - 805 8.05 805 8.05
9 |8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-5FEB29 1000/- 500 4.98 500 498
359.64 359.64
Total of Quoted Securities 7,161.97 3,651.12
Unguoted Equity Shares - Valued at Amortised Cost
1 |Woodside Fashion Limited 10/- 5,39,000 134.75 5,39,000 134.75
2 |Bengal NRI Complex Limited 10/- 7,22,500 68.25 7,22,500 68.25
Total of Unquoted Securities 203.00 203.00
NAV No. of Units | (Rs.InLakhs)| No.of Units | (Rs.In Lakhs)
c Investments in Mutual Funds - Valued at FVTPL
1 ABSL Balanced Advantage Fund Growth - - - 1,36,904 99.04
2 |ABSL Equity Hybrid 95 Fund Growth 1020.4800 4,742 876 48 40 4,743 5168
3 |Axis Global Innovation Fund of Fund Regular Growth 93700 9,99,950.002 93.70 9,99,950 99.00
4 |Axis Mid Cap Fund - Regular Growth - - - 42,989 28.97
5 |Axis Growth Opportunities Fund - Regular Growth - - - 1,71,159 35.28
6 |Axis Small Cap Fund - Regular Growth - - - 73,374 45.06
7 |Axis Triple Advantage Fund - Regular Growth - - - 3,79,586 114.46
8 |HDFC Flexi Cap Fund - Growth - - - 2,814 28.43
9 |HDFC Developed World Indexes R-G - - - 2,49,988 26.14
10 |HDFC Mid Cap Opportunities Fund - Gr - - - 18,348 16.62
11 |HDFC Small Cap Fund - R-G - - = 23,424 16.61
12 JHDFC Top 100 Fund - Gr - - - 1.5% 11.08
13 1] Prudential Technology Plan - Growth 132.0200 31,295.381 11.32 31,295 50.88
14 }ICICI Prudential FMCG Plan - Growth - - - 15,213 49.98
15 JICICI Prudential Multi Assets Fund - Growth - - - 7,413 3218
16 |ICICI Prudential US Blue-chip Equity Fund - Gr B - - 55,714 2598
17 JICICI Prudentlal Commodities Fund - Gr - - - 98,614 24.86
18 |JICICI Prudential NASDAQ 100 Index Fund - Gr 9.3362| 2,49,987.501 23.34 2,49,988 24.77
19 JICICI Prudential Banking & Financial Plan - Gr - = - 28,884 23.33
20 |ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Gr 321.1334 94,914.061 304.80 - -
21 |ICICI Prudential PSU Equity Fund - Gr 10.3900] 2,49,987.501 25.97 - -
22 INippon India Large Cap Fund - GrPlan Gr Option - - - 1,96,204 99.44
23 |Nippon India Flexi Cap Fund - Growth Plan - - - 10,26,947 108.78
24 INippon India Multi Asset Fund - Growth Plan = = - 4,19,045 55.54
537.53 1,068.09
Total Investment (A+B+C) 7,902.50 4,922.21
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11

Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Advance Taxes (Net) 161

Total - 1.61

Note 12

Provisions

Particulars 31.03,2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 2.75 4.75

TOTAL 2.75 4.75

Note 13

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Liability
Changes in Fair Value of [nvestment 298 2286

Deferred Tax Assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 109 1.15
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 1.89 21.71

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Recognised/
Particulars Opening lhrz:,gel:s::inﬁl Reco%nclsled m Closing Balance
and loss

(Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs. In Lakhs}) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 115 (0.06) - 1.09

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
(a) Fair Value change in Investment (22.86) {0.26) 2014 (2.98)

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) {21.71) 0.32) 20.14 (1.89)

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2027 are as follows:

Recognised/
s 5 g reversed Recognised in .
Particulars Opening through Profit ocI Closing Balance
and foss

(Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs. In Lakhs}) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 116 (0.01) - 1.15

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
(a) Fair Value change in Investment (11.31). 353 (15.08) (22.86)

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (10.15) 352 {15.08) (21.71)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Profit Before Tax 2,657.51 52295
Tax Rale fut Cutpurate Enlily as pet Licome Tax Acl, 1961 2517% 2517%
Expected Tax Expense as per Income Tax Act, 1961 668 .84 131.62
Tax Effect of:
Expenses not exempt from Tax 2040 242
Income exempt from Tax (38.52) (38.40)
Tax fur earlier years (047) {0.59)
Deferred Tax Adjustments 0.32 (3.52)
Other Items (0.73) (1.29)
Total Tax Expense as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 649.84 90.23
Note 14
Other Non Financial Liabilities
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Liabilities for Expenses 0.58 087
Statutory Liabilities 071 0.69
TOTAL 1.29 1.55
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Note 15
Equity Share Capital
Particulars

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs}) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Authorized share capital
90,00,000. { P.Y. 90,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 900.00 900.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up

952,595 ( P.Y. 9,52,595) Equity shares of Rs,10 each fully paid up 9526 95.26
Total Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up 95.26 95.26
Heconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting perind
FEquity shares 31.03:2023 31.03.2022

No. (s In Lakhs) No. [R= In Lakhs)
it the beginning of the period 9,52,595 95.26 9,52,595 9526

Issued during the period

Ouistanding at the end of the period 9,52,595 95.26 9,52595 95.26

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. On a show of hands, every member, present in person or by proxy, is entitled
to one vote and in case of poll, the voting rights of every member shall be in proportion to his shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the company

The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding, more than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares 1032023 31.03.2022
% No %

Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat 9.65 91,933 9.65
Surendra Kumar Baghhawal 9.09 Be632 9.09

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat 7.59 T84, 7.59

Prakiash Bachhawat 7.85 74,750 7.85

Duepak Bachhawat 5.83 55,500 585 35,300

Lraulat Financial Services (F) Lid 717 58,300 717 oh, 300

Ueeplok Securities Limited 593 58,450 593 36450

Guliae i Toude & Toldbig Dol LD 311 43,070 J.21 49,8/ J

Details of Shares held by Promoters

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Promoter name No. of Shares oot No. of Shares Zofitoal ¥ Chiange drring
shares shares the year

Rajendrs Kumar Bachhawat 91,933 9.65% 91,933 G a5 0.00%

Surendra Kumar Bachhawat £6,631 9.09% B6,632 92.09% 0.00%

Mahendra Kumor Hachhawat 72284 7.59% TLIR4 739% 0op%

Surendra Kumar Bachhawat { RSM Investments) 44300 4.65% 44,300 4465% 0.00%

Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat H.U.F 43,600 458% 43,600 4.58% 0.00%

Dwpuk Dudlilisw it 39,300 383% .30 pEAS YW

Prakash Bachhawat 73750 7.85% 74,750 7E3% 0.00%

Alok Bachhawat 28,500 3.03% 28900 303% 0.00%

Suro| Bachhawat 50 001% 50 (.01 % 0.00%

Daulat Financial Services {F) Ltd 68,300 717% 6800 717% 0.00%

Deeplok Securities Ltd 56450 5.93% 36,450 503% 0.00%

Vinavak Dealer () Ltd 43.500 4.57% 23,500 4.57% 0.00%

RSM Builders & Securities () Ltd 35100 3.68% 33,100 3hi% 0,00%

Total [ 70,299 73.62% 701,299 73.62% 0.00%

Note 16

Other Equity

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs)

Retained Earnings 6,550.32 5,144.95
Securities Premium 356.00 356.00
Amalgamation Reserve 12929 12929
Special Reserve 1.766.64 136511
General Reserve 224 53 2376
Other Comprehensive Income 4036 21893
TOTAL 9,067.13 7,238.04

Nature and purpose of reserves

a} Retained Eamnings: Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions
paid to shareholders,

b)Securities Premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

¢)General Reserve: General Reserve are amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible general purpose as per Law

d) Reserve fund in terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 : Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 as a statutory reserve

e)Other comprehensive income represenits fair value recognition and measurement of equity instruments through other comprehensive income.

f) Amalgamation Reserve : This Reserve was created on the basis of the scheme of Amalgamation of Meadow Properties Pvt. Ltd, Vasant Lok Properties Pvt. Lid,
Developers Private Limited and DAP Constructions Pvt Ltd with the Company in the year ended 31st March 1999,

. A = A
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Note 17
Interest Income on financial assets
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Interest Income :
On Tax Free Bond 30.68 34.90
On Others - Exempted 0.03 0.02
On Others 515.21 416.82
Total 545.92 451.75
Note 18
Dividend Income
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs.In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs)
Dividend Income
Shares 2,218.70 15.22
Brookfield R.E.LT- Exempted 0.11 0.22
Total 2,218.81 15.44
Note 19
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments - 9.14
Total - 9.14
Note 20
Other Income
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Ms.TuLuklis) | (R Lu Lukls)
Profit/ (Loss) on disposal of Long term Tnvestments
Slres
With STT 27.21 106.51
Mutual Fund
Profit on Mutual Fund- Long Term-with STT 37 A5 -
Bond
Without STT - 048
Profit/ (Loss) on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares
With STT 2.01 -
Mutual Fund
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - Without STT 15.70 28.27
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - With STT 712 20.72
Profit/(Loss) on Share Speculation - 1.29
Miscellaneous Income - 020
89.68 157.47
H
% --':""-_--
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Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 21
Net Loss on Fair Value Changes

Particulars

31.03.2023

31.03.2022

Net Loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(Rs. In Lakhs)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

- Investments 67.19 -
Total 67.19 -
Note 22
Employee Benefit expense
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Director Remuneration 30.00 30.00
Salaries and Allowances 23.07 20.56
Staff's Mediclaim Insurance Premium 0.13 0.16
Total 53.20 50.72
Note 23
Other expenses
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Advertisement 0.31 0.30
AGM Expenses 0.28 0.18
Car Expenses 1.32 1.10
CSR & Donation 14.00 6.50
Demat Charges 0.35 0.36
Filing Fees 0.12 0.05
Insurance Charges 0.12 0.13
Loss on disposal of Short term Investments

Shares With STT - 4.55
Late Fees on TDS 0.03 -
Interest on Income Tax 0.84 -
Internal Audit Fees 0.10 0.08
Secretarial & Professional Charges 6.28 3.71
Listing Fees 0.85 0.72
Accrued Interest paid on purchase of Bonds 21.71 28.80
Accrued Interest paid on purchase of NCD 25.29 5.63
Repair & Maintenance Charges 127 0.64
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.08 127
Rates & Taxes 0.25 0.25
Stamp Duty on Mutual Fund/Bond 0.00 0.17
STT - Investment 011 0.65
Travelling & Conveyance 0.96 0.89
Contingent provision against Standard Assets created /(reversed) (2.00) 1.71
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 23 A) 110 0.94
Share Speculation Loss 0.00 -
lotal /5.38 58.64
Note 23 A
Payments to the auditor
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
For Statutory Audit 0.50 0.50
For Tax Audit - -
For other certification work 0.60 0.44
Total 1.10 0.94

E2




Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 [N

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No.24 Additional Disclosures
1 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

In respect of income tax demand amounting to Rs. 129/- Lakhs and Rs. 0.009/-Lakhs for the Assessment vear 2017-2018 and 2019-2020 respectively. The company has already filed
appeal/rectification with the respective authority.

2 Operating Segment:
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments of the Company.

As per requirement of Ind-AS 108 " Segment Reporting" no disclosures are required to be made since the Company's activities consist of a single business segment.

3 There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the vear and also at 31st March 2023.
This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the company, (31st March 2022- Nil)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Compulation of Farnings per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted) 2022-23 2021-22
] Basic
(a) (i) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
(ii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
(iv) Face Value of each Equity Share (In °) 10 10
(b) Amount of Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders 1,829.10 536.19
(c} Basic Earnings per Equity Share [(b)/(a)(iii)] 192.01 56.29
oy Diluted
(a) Dilutive Potential Equity Shares 9,52,595 9,52,595
(b) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share [Same as (I)(c) above] 192,01 56.29

5 Related Party Disclosures:

A) List of related parties where control exists

S.N Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 Woodside Fashions Limited Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Managing Director
3 Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
4 Prakash Bachhawat Director
5 Sarla Baid
g ?aen[?:}sﬁ'::‘}:?n Independent Director
8 Rajni Mishra Company Secretary
9 Pradip Kumar Bera Chief Financial Officer
10 Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Relative of Key Management Personnel

B) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

S.N Name of the Related Party Relatonship
1 Woodside Fashions Limited Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bachhawat
3 Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Key Management Personnel
4 Prakash Bachhawat
5 J B Leasing Pvt. Ltd. Parties where Control exists
6 Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Relative of Key Management Personnel

- o o) ]
r a , b
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Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C) Transactions during the year with related parties:
(Rs. Int Lakhs)

S Nature of Transactons with Parti here C. 1 exi 0 ey R:/Ilahve fKEy, Outstanding  as on
5.0 Related Party arties where Control exists anagement anagement 31st March’2023
Personnel Personnel
1 Purchase of Investments (Shares) . " 56 37/"
(486.227-)
2 Sale of Investments (Shares) - ; 50.81/- B
(234.44/-)
3! F'urchase of Investments (Debentures) 509'00/'
(NIL/4)
4 Director's Remuneration _ 30.00/- ) B
(30.00,/<)

** Previous Year's figures are given in bracket

10

11

12

13

14

As per notification no.RBI/DNBR/2016-17/44 issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Contingent Provision against Standard Assets have been reversed by Rs..2.00/- Lakhs during the year.(created
in P.Y. Rs.1.71/- Lakhs)

22,900 Shares of Tata Steel Limited shown under Non-current Investment in the financial statements is yet to be transferred in the name of the company due to litigation with respect to cwrniership
of shares.

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non - Banking Financial Company as required in terms of Paragraph 16 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBR,PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 is as per Annexure 1.

The Board of directors decided in their meeting dated 07,/12/2022 that doubtful loan amounting to Rs. 56.25/- Lakhs to be treated as bad debts since the same is not recoverable from the parties,
Necessary effect has been given in the accounts under the review
The Company has principal investments of Rs.400.57/- Lakhs in the Preference shares of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited which are accounted at Amortised Cost as per Ind AS

109 - Financial Instrument. The company (IL & FS Ltd.) is classified as Red Entities by Resolution Consultant of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited. Accordingly, the campany
had made provision for fair value loss of Rs. 400.57/- Lakhs during the previous year ended 31.03.2020 and the same was shown as exceptional item.

Details of transaction with struck off Companies
Name of Struck . | Balance | Relationship with the Struck
Nature of transaction with Struck-off Company Outstan| off company, if any, to be
off Company q A
ding disclosed
NA Investment in Securities Nil NA
NA Receivables Nil NA
NA Payables Nil NA
NA Share held by stuck off company Nil NA
NA Other Outstanding Balance (to be specified) Nil NA

The Company has incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure during the year as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March,2023 | 31st March,2022
Gross Amount required to be spent
by the Company 6.72 6.46
Amount spent by the Company as
CSR Donation for promotion of 14.00 6.50

education.

1) There has been no shortfall in amount required to be spent for CSR activities during the current reporting period year.
2) The CSR donation is in support of institution involved in promotion of Education.

Yet to be paid in

Particulars In Cash Total
Cash
(1) Construction /acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil
{ ievivus Yean ) NI INII INIL
(1) O purpuses othier tian () aluve 1400 Lakhs N1l il
{ Previous Year ) 6,50 Lakhs Nil il

Deferred tax:
As per Ind AS 12, the Company has deferred tax liabilities due to difference in depreciation as per Companies Act and as per Income tax Act, MAT credit entitlement & Fair Value Change in

Tisefnl Tife of Praperty Plant & Fanipment as per Companies Act 2013 are given helow-

Assets Useful life Remaining Life
Building 60 years 36.9
Motor Car 8 years 241
Office Equipment's 5 years Nil

investment (Refer Note. 13 to the financial statenents)
i‘____



Deeplok Financial Services Limited

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

15 Financial Instrument related disclosures

(1)

A. Accounting classification and fair values

Financial instruments- Accounting, Classification and Fair Value Measurement

B. Measurement of fair values

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not

include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
(Rs. In Laks)

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
A |Financial Assets
1 | Investments 6,687.32 652.54 562.64 3,539.85 819.72 562.64
2 | Cash and cash equivalents - - 40.10 - - 472,39
3 |Trade Receivables - - - - - -
4 |Loans - 1,100.06 - 1,901.30
5 | Other financial assets - - 121.04 - - 61.33
Total financial assets 6,687.32 652.54 1,623.84 3,539.85 819.72 2,997.65

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - . - - - -
Trade payables - - - = & =
Other financial liabilities(Current) - = - - = z

Total Financial Liabilities - - - = - =

WIN |~

Faijr Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value
and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is|
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Fair values are determined in whole or in
part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are|
they based on available market data.

Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgments to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based onj
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all
financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each
reporting date.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
a. the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis/ other method
b. the use of quoted market price

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets:

[nvestments measured at FVTPL 6,687.32 - - 3,539.85 - -

Investments measured at FVOCI 652.54 . - 819.72 - - -

Total 7,339.86 - - 4,359.57 - - N

The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to short term nature.

Notes:
1 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022.

5 Costs of certain unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of };éissibk fairvalue

measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. /\‘
—(—le’_,/ /qﬁ)z/



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

16 Finacial risk management

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks
and wedil tisk. The Coupanty s senivn management lias tie overall responsibiitty for establishing and governing
the Company's financial risk management framework.

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, bank balances and loans.

At cach reporting date, the Company mcagures loss allowance for certain class of financial asscts based on
histarical trend, industry practices and the business envirnnment in which the Company aprratea

Credit risk arising from balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
worthiness.

Credit risk arising from loans given/inter-corporate deposits (ICD) are limited due to due to the Borrower’s|
profiles and historical experience of collection. All such ICDs are reviewed and assessed on a quarterly basis.

(B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its
Liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and
stressed conditions.

The Company maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended
31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the|
financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has|
sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus cash generated, over and
above the amount required for working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as
cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing NCDs, bonds and
other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on investments
while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

(C) Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk of loss of future earnings/ future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a
financial instrument. The price of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in market prices, equity
prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. The goal of market risk management
is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits.

(i) Currency Risk is not material, as the Company’s primary business activities are within India and does not have
any exposure in foreign currency.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate| | = ' gl/
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to the interest rate risk due to its ;
investment in fixed rate instruments which are being carried at cost and not subject to interest rate risk.

e




Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

17 Capital management
Regulatory capital

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to time.
The Companies regulatory capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

Tier 1 Capital includes:

Tier 1 Capital includes:

1) Ordinary share capital,

2) Securities premium reserve,

3) Retained earnings,

4) Cummulative compulsorily convertible preference Shares (CCCPS),
5) Debenture redemption reserve
6) Perpetual debt

7) Special reserve

8) Retained eamnings

9) Special reserve.

10) General reserve

Tier 1 Capital does not include unrealised fair value gain/loss booked for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss statement and shares
option outstanding account Following items are deducted from Tier I

a) Intangibles
b) Deferred revenue expenditure for raising borrowings
) Deferred tax assets
Tier II capital includes
1) subordinated debt
2) impairment allowance provisioning for stage 1 and stage 2 financial assets to the extent the same does not exceed 1.25% of Risk weighted assets,
3) perpetual debt to the extent not eligible for Tier L
(Rs. In Lakls)
Particalars | I s At
Asat31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022
Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share capital 95.26 95.26
Securities premium reserve 356.00 356.00
Amalgamation Reserve 129.29 129.29
Retained earnings 6,550.32 5,144.95
Spedial reserve 1,766.64 1,365.11
General reserve 22453 2376
Other Comprehensive Income 40.36 218.93
Less:

- Deferred TAX Asset (1.89) (21.71)
Tier I Capital 9,164.28 7,355.00
Tier IT Capital - -
Tier I + Tier I Capital 9,164.28 7,355.00

18 Others

(i} We are not aware of any violations or possible violations of laws or regulations the effect of which should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or
as a basis for recording a loss contingency. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with or deficiendies in
financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

(ii) Based on the written representations (in Form MBP-1) obtained from the directors and taken on record by the Board of directors, we confirm that none of the
directors is disqualified under section 164 of the Companies Act 2013 as at the Balance Sheet date.

(iif) No director of the Company is holding any office or place of profit, without the consent of the Company accorded by a special resolution. Also, no partner or
relative of such director, no firm in which such director, or a relative of such director, is a partner, no private company of which such director is a director or
member, and no director or manager of such a private company, is holding any office or place of profit (under the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013).

(iv) Transactions of the Company which are represented merely by the book entries are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.
(v) The transactions that need to be entered: in the register in pursuance of section 189 of the companies act, 2013 during the year have been so entered.

(vi) Ithas not incurred any cash losses in this financial year and in the financial year immediately preceding this financial year also.

qﬁ/_ (@M/@;L



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)
(vii} All the assessments completed during the year have been duly informed to the auditor and there is no such surrender or disclosures of unrecorded income arised
to any assessment vear under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The company has neither been declared as a willful defaulter nor has received any show cause notice from any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(ix) The company has implemented internal control systems with regard to operation of and accounting and that are designed to prevent and detect frauds and errors.
The company has disclosed to the auditor all significant facts relating to any frauds or suspected frauds known to management that may have affected the entity.
The auditor has not filed ADT 4 during the year.

(x) The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the vear.

(xi) The company has not made any transactions during the year with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

(xii) The company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Iransactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

19 Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator Cul:rent PI'EYIOIIS % Variance Rea:f»on =
Period Period Variance
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) | 117 [+ Tier Il |Risk Weighted 138 147 6.34% NA
Capital Assets
Tier | CRAR TierICapital | ok Weighted 138 147 6.34% N.A
Assets
Tier Il CRAR Tier Il Capital | o Weighted N.A N.A N.A NA,
Assets
cctong, [NCe
Liquidity Coverage Ratio Quality Liquid N.A N.A N.A N.A
s the next 30
calendar days

20 The previous period’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to correspond to those of the current year. Amounts
and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts
and other disclosures relating to the current year.

As per our Report of even date attached. T
G TN

For JBS & Company For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants =
" . o
Firm Registration No: 323734E .&— Q/A/L\Q M
\ \ 2 d l\uw '@—Q
e Kooda 5 -
i £ %
ar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Ca Dillip Shaha Z Director Director
(Partner) W { DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820

JTE Sz & COMPANY i Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera

:)1:::.: Kolkata C h ar § ere d A ccoun t a nts Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

2 = = e

2 g ML 2023

o ————

A4S

= Ragim Mighota,  Pronio tevsesn Moya.



Annexure 1

SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.23 OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

PARTICULARS

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue

LIABILITIES SIDE :

( )Loans and Advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of

interest accrued thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures: Secured
Unsecured

(Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits

(c) Term Loans

(d) Inter-Corporate Loans & Borrowings
(e) Commercial Paper

(f) Public Deposits

(g) Other Loans (Specify nature)

(2) Break-up of 1(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a) Interms of Unsecured debentures

(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall

in the value of security
(¢) Other Public Deposits

ASSETS SIDE :

AMOUNT OUTSTANDING

G Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables
[Other than those included in (4) below ] :

(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured

1100.06

Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets
¢ )counﬁng towards AFC activities :

(i) Lease Assets including Lease Rentals under Sundry Debtors :
{a) Financial Lease
(b) Operating Lease

(ii) Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under Sundry Debtors :
(a) Assets on Hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii} Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

(5) Break-up of Investments :

Current Investinents :
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a)Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specity)

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

Contd........




SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2022 OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company ~Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

Long Term [nvestments :
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a)Equity

(b) Preference
(i1) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity
(b) Preference
(iiy Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Gold Coins)

652.54
4869.57
537.53
1639.86

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Categoty Amount net of provision
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - --
(b) Companies in the same group -- - -
(c) Other related parties = = =
2. Other than related parties - 1100.06 1100.06
TOTAL: - 1100.06 1100.06
(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
unquoted) :
Market Value/ Book Value
Category Break-up or fair (Net of
Value or NAV Provisions)
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - =
(b) Companies in the same group 134.75 134.75
(c) Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 7,767.75 7,767.75
TOTAL: 7,902.50 7,902.50
(8) Other Information
Particulars Amount

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties
) Other Bt celaled Do lico
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than related Parties
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants -
Firm Registration No: 323734E

%\\ﬁp Woba. [o/
CA Dillip Shaha

(Partner)
Membership No. 312458

J. B.S. & COMPANY|]—

E ::(_Ef‘ﬁ“&%‘?&ed Accountants

2 9 MAY 2023

KOLKATA

/£ For and on Behalf of the Board

rendra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
' Director Director
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820

R“‘ﬁﬂf Mighsa, PrradhPteencanr Pere .

ajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
60, BENTINCK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
KOLKATA - 700 069
E-mail : jbs _company@rediffmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF

DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Ind-AS Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

SERVICES LIMITED (“the Parent Company”), its Associate (the Parent and its Associate together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statemerit of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the
year then ended, and Notes to the ind-AS Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “the Ind-
AS Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind-AS consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Comparies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, Consolidated
Changes in Equity and its Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended on that date.

Rasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities




Continuation Sheet

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA))
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial

provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Ind-AS consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind-AS consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
toread the other information and. in dain 8 50, consider whellier the other mformation is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge nhtained in the audjl ol
ollietwise appears to bo materially wisstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements
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and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding

companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind- AS Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: ‘

* Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the consolidated financial

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understandin g of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for éxpressing our opinion on whether the
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company and its subsidiary have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to continue as a going concern.
* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial

Statements, including the disclosures, and whetlher the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manncr that achieves fajr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

The Ind AS cunsulidated tinancial statements alsq include Uw: Group's share of tolal
comprehensive income of Rs. 1928.82 Lakhs for the year ended 3 /st March. 2023, as considered in
the Tnd-AS Coneolidated  [ia110ju] Statements, in respect of one associate whose [inancial
Slalements/ financial information have not been audited by us and whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L Companies (Auditor’s Report ) Order,2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, is not applicable on Consolidated
Financial Statements as referred in Proviso to Para 2 of the said order.

II.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report

Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statement.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended.

€) On the basis of the written Tepresentations received from the directors of the Parent Company
and its associate as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent
Company, none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on 31st March, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

L. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financia] position in its
Consolidated Financial Statements [Refer Note No. 24(1) of the Consolidated Financial
Statements] ;
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. The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

fii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group

iv.  (A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material cither individually or in the aggregate) have hecn advanced or loated
orinvested (exther from horrawed funda nr *hasy premium o any other sources or Kind of
{unds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediarics”), with (le understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal
e Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in ollier persons or
entities identified in any munner wlialsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide ony guardilee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of ils knowled ge and belief, no
tunds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded inwriting or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

IV. " With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of ie Act, as amended:
Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

V. With respect to the other matters specified in clause (xxi) of para graph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ CARO") Issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report,
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statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there
are no qualification or adverse remarks in the CARO report of the component.

For].B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 323734E

Dillip Shaha
Partner
“"‘N/lembership Number: 312458

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2023
UDIN: 23312458BGVOKE1038
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of DEEPLOK FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal
tinancial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Deeplok Financial Services Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Parent Company”), and its subsidiary, which are mcorporated in

India, as of that date
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishin & and maintaining intersal
[inancial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the cssental components of internal control stated in the Guiduance
Notfe on Audit of Internal Finasgial Controls over linancial Reporting issued hy the Institute of
Chalered Accountants of India ('ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Finarcial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued hy the Tnstitule of Chartered
Accounlants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals, hoth

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and Operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial contro] over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind-AS Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind-AS Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 323734E

1 \ VP

\rﬂq’ . Dillip Sh
N illip Shaha
\\"H Partner

Membership Number: 312458
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29-05-2023

UDIN: 23312458BGVOKE1038



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
I ASSETS
1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 31.89 56.22
(b) Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 4 8.21 416.17
(o) Loans 5 1,100.06 1,901.30
(d) Investments 6 11,053.20 7,973.19
(e) Other Financial assets 7 121.04 61.33
12,314.40 10,408.21
) Non-financial Assets
(a) Inventories 8 019 033
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 9 0.07 -
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment 10 436 5.36
4.62 5.69
Total Assets 12,319.03 10,413.90
I LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
A LIABILITIES
4) Non Financial Liabilities
(a) . Current tax Liability (Net) 11 - 1.61
(b) Provisions 12 2.75 4.75
© Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 1.89 21.71
(d) Other non-financial liabilities 14 1.29 1.55
592 29.62
B EQUITY
{a) Equity Share capital 15 95.26 95.26
(b) Other Equity 16 12,217.84 10,289.02
12,313.10 10,384.28
Total Liabilities and Equity 12,319.03 10,413.90
The accompanying notes 1-24 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our Report of even date attached.
For J.B.S & Company ! For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Fin:rl Regis!:raimn No: 323734E e

CA Dillip Shaha endra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
(Partner) Director Director
Membership No. 312458 DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
~
Weneqn
Place : Kolkata i RO_ M gl‘w p ’7[01/{9%/50 MC\ "
Date : ajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera
) Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
I B s & f‘f‘s(.ﬁDAN\_g"
Charter s znis
[ v 3 FAAT 2023
‘ i
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Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. 2022-2023 2021-2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 17 545.92 451.75
Dividend Income 18 2,218.81 15.44
Net gain on fair value changes 19 - 9.14
Total Revenue from Operation 2,764.73 476.32
Other income 20 89.68 157.47
Tulul Tussnn. 20641 600,12
EXPENSES
Net (Increase)/ Decrease in Stock 0.14 0.06
Net loss on fair value changes 21 67.19 0.00
Employee benefits expense 22 53.20 50.72
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10 1.00 141
Other expenses 23 75.38 58.64
Total Expenses 196.90 110.84
Proflt/(.loss) !Sefore Share of Protit of Associate and 265751 52205
Exceptional items and Tax
Share ot Prohit ot Associate {net of Lax) 105.81 20713
Profit/(loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax 2,763.32 730.09
Exceptional Items = -
Profit/(loss) before Tax 2,763.32 730.09
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 649.99 94.34
Deferred Tax 0.32 (3.52)
Earlier Years (0.47) (0.59)
649.84 90.23
Profit for the Year 211348 639.86
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value FOVCI equity instruments (198.72) 118.55
Income tax relating to these items 20.14 (15.08)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Share of OCI of Associate (net of tax) (6.09) (17.95)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (184.66) 85.51
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,928.82 725.37
Eaming Per Shares
Basic and Diluted 202.48 76.15
Nominal Value Per Share 10.00 10.00
The accompanying notes 1-24 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our Report of even date attached.
LT
For].B.S & Company /: : ;T e For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants I."j 2 ’)
irm Registration No: 323?34:3@ f ) ,(: L)\L"\
ey Yo |« g : JI_,Q(/ Alrar —
CA Dillip Shaha : - refidra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
(Partner) A Director Director
Membership & 312458 - /. DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820

i B s
Place : Koli\'*a @h_ﬁ‘?‘ff‘f

Date:

e . [y 3 (\ .
Raa?n M: Bhra . P«%MW‘J”“
Rajnt'Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

KOLKATA |

e
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Deeplok Financial Services Limited

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs}

PARTICULARS

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Amount (Rs.)

Amount (Rs.}

Amount (Rs.)

Amount (Rs.)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax : 2,657.51 522.95
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 1.00 141
Provisions for standard and sub standard assets (2.00) 1.71
Net Changes in Fair Market Value 67.19 9.19)
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Investment (89.68) (152.71)
Dividend Income (2,218.81) (2,242.30) (15.44) (174.17)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 415.21 348.79
Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Asset and other assets (59.72) (26.57)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Bank Balance 407.96 2,29515
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 0.14 0.06
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liability (1.88) 346.50 1.80 2,270.44
Cash used for Operations 761.72 2,619.23
Direct Taxes Paid:
Income Taxes Paid 649.59 82.95
Net Cash inflow/ (outflow) from Operating Activities (A) 112.13 2,536.28
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loan Disbursed, Recd,& Repayment recd.(net) 801.24 (685.48)
Sale of Fixed Assets & CWIP - -
Purchase of Fixed Assets - -
(Puxchase) / Sale of Investments (3,156.51) (2/438.44)
Dividend Received 2,218.81 1544
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (B) {136.46) (3,108.48)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Inflow/(Qutflow) from Financing Activities (C) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (24.33) (572.20)
Add: Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 56.22 628.42
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 31.89 56.22
Notes:
a) Cash and cash equivalent under financial asset at note no.4 are cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of drawing cash flow statement. Therefore reconciliation statement required under para 45 of Ind AS 7 is not required.
b) Figures in the brackets are cash outflow/income as the case may be.

The accompanying notes 1-24 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For ].B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants P N >,
Firm Registration No: 323734E /. “~ .

/
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/
|’I

For and on behalf of the Board

) o7 - 4 _BR 5o Aka ok

(x. u'l.{] M [ j{'t/%}\ﬁjﬂ' ——

CA Dillip Shaha \ Syrendra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat

(Partner) / Director Director

Membership No. 312458 b R d P . ; DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820

Place : Kolkata e - 3 Mf XKM " per Wm’ Mc‘ *

Date : | | ajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera

i Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Consolidated Statement of Change In Equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting period

(Rs. In Lakhs)

5 E:z?tieSS}::e Restatefi b?]ance at |Changes i‘n equity Balance at fhe end
Balance at the beginning of the . the beginning of the [share capital
current reporting period Ca.p e d}x g current reporting during the current o t_he c.urrenl
prior period . reporting period
= period year

95.26 - - 95.26

(2} Previous repuorling perivd
m?"gﬁ i Restated balance at | Changes in equi
Dulaice an e beg liodog uf (e CE:[:‘[::‘; 33:[': ie Legliiilng uf die sluiie t.lu!l.q.ll B Bflll'ﬂ::lc: "::r;:‘:d
prévioud reporting period previous reporting during the ,-P I
prior perlod iod : ; reporting period
- citors peri previous year
95.26 - - 95.26
B, Other Equily
1) Current reporting Period
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Other
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Description Income Total
Retained Earnings Secu.r.ities Amalgamation Special Reserve General ) Equity
Premium Reserve Reserve instruments
Balance at 01 April 2022 8,200.07 356.00 129.29 1,365.11 23.76 214.78 10,289.02
Profit for the year 2,113.48 = = - - 2,113.48
Nthar Camprohanein Tneama (194 44) (191 66)
Gross Balance 10,313.55 356.00 129.29 1,365.11 23.76 30.12 12,217.84
“ | Less: Appropriations

- Transfer to General Reserve (200.77) - - - 200.77 - -

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act) (401.53) - - 401.53 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 9,711.25 356.00 129.29 1,766.64 224.53 30.12 12,217.84
2) Previous reporting period

Other

Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Description Income Total
. . Securities Amalgamation . General Equi
Retained Earnings Premium Regserve Special Reserve Reserve insl:r?xmteyn ts
Balance at 01 April 2021 7,646.76 356.00 129.29 1,278.56 23.76 129.27 9,563.64
Profit for the year 639.86 - - - - 639.86
Jther Comprehensive Income - - - - - 85.51 85.51
Gross Balance 8,286.62 356.00 129.29 1,278.56 23.76 214.78 10,289.02
Less: Appropriations

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act) (86.55) - - 86.55 - - -

Balance at 31 March 2022 8,200.07 356.00 129.29 1,365.11 23.76 214.78 10,289.02
For ).B.5 & Uompany For a,(d on behalt of the Board
Charlered Accounlants &
-

ririm Rieglsiraiion Nu: 5257548

CA Dillip Sh
(Partncr) ]
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Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Signifivant Accounting Policies

General Information

Deeplok Financial Setvices Limited (the 'Company") is a public limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in India. The equity shares of the Company are listed . The
registered office of the Company is located at 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, South Block, 2nd Floor, Kolkata 700020, West Bengal, India

The Company is mainly engaged in investment in shares and securities
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 29th May 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements unless otherwise indicated
21  Presentation of financial statements
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division I1l of Schedule LIl to
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS. Amounts in the financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakh
2.2  Basis of preparation
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions”)
issued by RBI. The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of
significant uncertainties
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had prepared its Consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 and the NBFC Master Directions (hereinafter referred as ‘Previous GAAP")
23 Prnciples of consolidation
(i) The consolidated financial statements of Deeplok Financial Services Limited and its associate have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its associate.
Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investment in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after
initially being recognised at cost.
The Consolidated financial statements include results of the Associate of Deeplok Financial Services Limited (Parent Company),
consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements”
(i)
Name of the Compan: Country of incorporation Froportioniokgwnershiplas Consolidated as
pany P at Reporting Date
Woodside Fashions Limited India 23.96% Associate
Figures for preparation of consolidated financial statements have been derived from the audited financial statements of the respective company in the Group.
(iii} Disclosure in terms of Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013
Net :Assets (1.e.'tot.a! ?ssets Share in Profit or (Loss) Share in ollrer comprehensive | Share in tot_al comprehensive
minus total liabilities) income income
f th it
Nani-n: :;1: Ger::hhes Asa % of Amount Asa%of Amount As a Y% of Amount As a % of Amount
N consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
net assets profit or loss other total
comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent
Deeplok Financial Services Limited 7383% 9,162,39 94.99% 2,007 67 96.70% (178.57) 94.83% 1,829.10
(Associate
Woodside Fashions Limited 26.17% 3,247.77 501% 105.81 3.30% (6.09) 517% 99.72
Total 100.00% 12,410.16 100.00% 2,11348 100.00% (184,66} 100.00% 1,928.82
24

Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

a) Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date
b) Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Jevel 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
¢} Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date.
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Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgements, assumptions and estimates that affect the reported balances of assets
and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses fo1 the reporting
period The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the
financial statements have been disclosed as applicable in the respective notes to accounts. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Future results could
differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Income Taxes:-
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is Iindia Significant judgements are involved in determining the provisions for income taxes including amount expected to be paid or
recovered for uncertain tax positions

Summary of significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and finanual lidbilities gl Tan value Unuugh profil or luss) ate added to or deducted trom the tair value measured on (nitial recognition of tnancial asset or Hnanclal liability.
The Lransaction cosls dircelly altributable to the acquidition of (inancial asscts and financial liabilitiea ot (i value (hivugh profit and luss are innnedialely tecoguised i the
statement of profit and loss

i)  Financial Assets

Subsequent Recognition
The classification of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flow

The financial assets are classified in the following categories:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost,

b) financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss { FVTPL), and

¢) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ( FVOCI).

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised coast
Afne initial mmcneamant, cuch finncial arcate gro cubroguontly moncured ot amortisnsd seat wkine the pffwolive intereai ran meshad . Tha learse ariine from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision for

impairment, if any.

Financial instruments measured at FVTPL
Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value plus transaction costs as applicable.
Fair value movements are recorded in Statement of Profit & Loss

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

Investment in Bonds(other than Tax free) and Mutual fund
Investment in Equity Oriented Mutual Funds, Debt Oriented Mutual fund and Bonds(other than Tax free) are classified as FVTPL and measured at fair value with

all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Investment in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Preference Shares
Investment in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Preference Shares are measured at Cost.

Investment in Equity
Investment in Equity are classified as FVTOCI and measured at fair value with ali changes recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Investments in Associates
The (‘nmpany has elerted tn measure Investrment in associates at cost

Uthier vnyuuied Eyully imvesiieins
The Company has elected to measure Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares at cost.

De- recognition of financial assets
The company de- recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows for the financial assets expires or it transfer the financial assets and such
transfer qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 109- Financial instruments

ATt eratioenly ol than Hwose dacdeosd ellurwows s Gaowd at cok oo accumulatod impairmoent logseg, it any, Where an indication of impairment oxisty, the
carrying amount of the investment is assessed and is written down imunediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Tmprirmant nf Finanrial arrate

it LOMpURY dYSessey BH 4 ROPMVHRL [BURING BAYLY Litd eXpaciea créalt 102888 4380¢ialed wilh 113 a3sels caried al amoirlised cosh | he inpaurmenl inelhodology
applicd depeids unoswhether there has been a significant increuse in aedit risk,

Unly tor Loans the implied approach ot lite time expected credit losses Is recognised from initial recognition of the receivables as required by Ind AS 109- financial
instruments.

Impairment loss allowance recognised / reversed during the year is charged / written back to Statement of Profit & Loss

2
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i)

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

Type of Financial asset | Disclosure

Financial asset measured at amortised [shown separtately under the head
Cost “provisions” and not as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Loan commitments and financial shown separately under the head
guarantee contracts “provisions”

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component and the Company cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment separately
from those on the drawn component, the Cornpany presents a combined loss allowance for both components under “provisions”

Financial liabilities

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value , net of transaction costs incurred . Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds ( net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using effective interest
method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that
the liability becomes payment on demand on the reporting date , the entity does not classify the liability as current , if the lender agreed, after the reporting period
and before the approval of the financial statement for issue , not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach,

For Trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amount approximates fair value to short- term maturity of these
instruments.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire or it transfer the financial
assets and such transfer qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 109- Financial instruments

All investments other than those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of the investment is assessed and is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised

amounts and the there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability subsequently. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counter party.

Income recognition

a)

b)

9

Interest income

The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets

subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes
attributable to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments/ receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/ financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability

The Company recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other

than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as ‘stage 3’, the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of
impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis

Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non payment of contractual cashflows is recognised on realisation.

Recognition of revenue from sale of goods or services

Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that reflects the considerations, to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Revenue from contract with customer for rendering services is recognised at a point in time when performance obligation is satisfied.

Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have been established.

Employee benefits

@

(b}

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages, salaries and other benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post employment obligations
Compensated absences
Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or enchased or contributed within the 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short

term employee benefits and the balances expected to be availed or enchased or contributed beyond 12 menths from the year end are treated as long term liability

and are accounted on undiscounted basis

Other short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expenses as per the Company's schemes based on the expected obligation on an undiscounted basis

A
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310
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313

Property, Planl & Equipment:
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at their original cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises cost of acquisition, cost of improvements, barrowing casts and
any attributable cost of bringing the assets to the condition for its intended use. Costs also include direct expenses incurred upto the date of capitalization/ commussioning

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 01 April, 2019 measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of all the property , plant and equipment

Depreciation
Depreciation has been provided on written down value method in accordance with the useful life of assets prescribed under Schedule- 1l of the Companies Act, 2013

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if
any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, which is expected to result in an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes

‘The hcc::ne tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply

when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise

those temporary differences and losses

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a leeally enforceable rieht to offset current tax assets and liahilities and when the deferred tax halances relate t the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and cettle the lability simultancously

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Earnings per share
Eamings per share is calculated in accordance with IND AS 33 on earnings per share. It is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity share

holders, by the weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Inventory
The inventory consists of shares held for trading purpose and are measured as per "Ind AS-2 Inventories" at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower at the balance

sheet date.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
FIUVISIONS d1E HECUEHISEU U IY Wil
{i) an entity has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and
(i} it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
(i} a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Provisivn is mieasured using Uie casle Mows estiniated tu selile il present ubligatiun and when the gffece of thne value of money Iy midterial, thie cdrrylng dimounte of the
provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is virtually

ceitain thal U peitnbuiszinent will be peueived

Contingent liability is disclosed in case ot:
{1) a present obligation arising trom past events, when 1t 1s not probable that an outtlow ot resources will be required to settle the obhgation; and

{ii) A present nhligatinn arising fram past events when na reliahle pstimate is pnssible Cantingent assets are disrlnsed where an inflaw af ecanamir henefits is
probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation
under the contract is recognised and measured as a proviston

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of the income is virtually certain, related asset is recognised

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities, Cash flow from operating activities is reported using
indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates and joint ventures;
and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows,

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance
Sheet

"Fveni after reporting date

Where the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events adju
within the financial statements Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.
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Note 4
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03,2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs}
Cash in hand ( As cerlified by Lhe Managiement) 024 0.20
Balance wilh banks
- in currenl Accounts 3165 56.01
31.89 56.22
Other Bank Balances
- in Fixed & Term Deposits Account 821 41617
{Maturity Period is more than 3 months but less than 12 months)
TOTAL 8.21 416.17
Nate 5
Loans
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
At Amortised Cost Rs, In Lakhs) {R=. In Lakhs)
Secured - .
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated )
Loans Lo Bodies Corporale
Considered Good 1,100.00 1,900.00
Clthers.
Advance to Staff 0.06 130
(Recoverable in cash or in kind or value to be received thereof)
Credit Impaired
Cunsiderid Doubtful 56.25 5625
Less : Bad Debls { Refer Note no. 249)] 5625 -
Less : Provision for Doubtful Asscls - - 56.25 .
TOTAL 1,100,06 1,901.30
Nnte
[nvestment
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
(A) Investments carried at Fair Value through profit or loss
Investment in Bonds 4,290.86 1,715.51
[nvestment in NCD 1,858.93 756.25
Mutual Funds 537.53 1,068.09
(B) Investments carried at Fair Value Other Comprehensive Income
Fully paid Equity Shares (Quoted) 65254 819.72
(c)r carried at A ised Cost
Equily Shares (Unquoted) 3,333.70 3,253.98
Non- Convertible Preference Shares (Quoled) 40057 400.57
Less: Provision for fair value loss of investment [ Refer Note no, 24(10)] 400.57 = 400.57 =
Tax Free Bonds 359.64 359.64
TOTAL 11,053.20 7,973.19
Note 7
Other Financial Assets
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.032022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Interest Receivable on Bonds 63.18 2801
Interest Receivable on NCD 5007 2187
Interesl Receivable on Tax Free Bonds 779 7.75
Dividend Receivable - 032
Accrued Interest on Term Deposit 0.00 338
Total 121.04 61.33
Note 8
Inventories
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.032022
(Rs. In Lakhs} (Rs. In Lakhs)
{Clusing Stock of Shares 0.19 0.33
TOTAL 019 0.33
Note 9
Current Tax Assets
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Advance Taxes (Net) 007 .
Total 0.07 -
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note 10
Property, Plant & Equipment
Particnlas Land & Building | Office Equipment Motor Cars Total
Tangible Assets
Cost/Deemed Cost
At 1st April 2021 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Additions - - - -
Disposals = = - -
At 31 March 2022 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - = -
As at 31 March 2023 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2021 7.88 3.25 11.38 2251
Depreciation Expense 0.12 1.29 1.11
Deduction - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 8.00 3.25 12.67 23.92
Depreciation Expense 0.12 - 0.89 1.00
Deduction - - -
As at 31 March 2023 812 3.25 1356 24.92
Carrying Value
As at 1st April 2021 250 0.15 412 6.77
As at 31 March 2022 237 0.15 2.84 5.36
As at 31 March 2023 2.26 0.15 1.95 4.36
— /ﬂ/
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6 Investment 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A. |Quoted Securities
Investment in Fully paid up Equity Instruments -Valued
at FVOCI
Sl. No.|Name of the Securities EV. No. of Units | (Rs.InLakhs) | No. of Units (Rs. In Lakhs)
1 |Bank of Baroda 2/ - - 5,000.00 558
2 |Bank of Maharashtra 10/- 50,000 12.38 - -
3 |Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 275/- 33,741 94.42 33,741 105.66
4 |Castrol India Limited 5/- - - 7,500 7.57
5 |Coal India Ltd 10/- 8,500 18.16 8,500 15.56
6  |Elpro International Limited 1/ 85,000 51.00 85,000 51.26
7 |GAIL (India) Limited 10/- 10,000 10.52 - -
8 |GAIL (India) Limited- Bonus Shares 10/- 5,000 5.26 - -
9 |GFLLtd 1/- 9,000 428 9,000 7.10
10 |Gujrat Fluro Chemical Ltd 1/- - - 800 21.94
11 |Hathway Cable and Datacom Limited 2/- 2,25,000 29.14 - ¥
12 Housing & Urban Development Corp. Ltd 10/- 48,000 20.76 48,000 15.72
13 |Indian Oil Corporation 10/- 15,000 11.69 15,000 17.84
14 |Indian Oil Corporation Bonus Shares 10/- 39,000 30.38 21,000 24.98
15 |Inox Wind Energy Ltd 10/- 625 6.87 900 6.39
16 |International Conveyors Ltd 1/- 5,00,000 238.75 5,00,000 415.25
17 |National Aluminum Co. Ltd 5/- 30,000 23.52 30,000 36.54
18 |NHPC Limited 10/- 74,000 29.75] 74,000 20.57
19 |NMDC Limited 1/- 15,000 16.73 15,000 24.38
20 |NMDC Steel Limited 10/- 15,000 4.66 - -
21 |Reliance Capital Ltd 10/- 400 0.03 400 0.07
22 |Reliance Home Finance Ltd 10/- 400 0.01 400 0.02]
23 |Tata Steel Ltd 10/- 4,330 4.52 433 5.66
24 |Tata Steel Ltd 10/- 22,900 23.93 2,290 29.93
25 |UCO Bank Ltd 10/- 65,000 15.80 65,000 7.70
652.54 819.72
Investment in Bond - Valued at FVTPL
1 |0% GOI CSTRIP GS 17Dec2025 100 3,00,000 247.86 - -
2 |9.60% Export Import Bank of India 07Feb2024 10,00,000 9 90.00 - -
3 |6.40% NABARD Bond 31Jul23 10,00,000 25 250.00 - -
4 |5.14% NBARD 31Jan24 10,00,000 84 840.00 - -
5 |5.44% NBARD 05Feb2024 10,00,000 50 500.00 - .
6 |7.77% National housing bank 02Apr2026 1,00,000 500 500.00 = -
7 18.10% REC Ltd Bond 25]June2024 10,00,000 18 180.00 - -
8 |11.45% MeECL Bonds-13FEB2030 10,00,000 5 50.00 5 50.00
9 19.75% UPPL Bond - 20 Oct.2027 10,00,000 4 41.00 4 43.14
10 6.10% GOI Bond 12JULY2031 1,00,000 1,500 1,392.00 1,500 1,422.38
11 |7.05% NHAI SR II 285EP2041 10,00,000 20 200.00 20 200.00
4,290.86 1,715.51
Investment in NCD - Valued at FVTPL
1 |2% Un-sec Optionally Cov Deb -] B Leasing Pvt.Ltd. 1,00,000 500 500.00 - -
2 16.83% HDFC Ltd 08JAN2031 10,00,000 10 98.11 10 100.00
3 |7.05% HDFC Ltd 01DEC2031 10,00,000 50 510.83 50 506.25
4 |7.25% L&T Ltd 24APRL2023 10,00,000 20 200.00 - -
5 |8.75% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 08DEC2028 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
6 ]5.32% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 30NOV2023 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
7 17.30% NMDC Steel Ltd 28AUG2025 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
8 |8.30% SBI Cards & Payment Serv Ltd 17May2023 10,00,000 10 100.00 - -
9 |7.99% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12JUL2029 10,00,000 15 150.00 15 150,00
1,858.93 756.25
Investments in Non-Convertible Preference Shares -
____ [ Valued at Amortised Cost
P 16\,‘46_".’-{. Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-24SEP22 15000/- 1,335 200.47 1,335 200.47
"2 [16.46% Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-150CT22 15000/ - 1,334 200.10 1,334 200.10
Less:-
. q Provision for fair value loss of investment (400.57) (400.57)
R - p— "~

Bl

g



B Investment in Tax Free Bonds- Valued at Amortised
Cost
51 No. |Name of the Company EV. No. of Units | (Rs.InLakhs)| No. of Units (Rs. In Lakhs)
1 8.10% IRFC Tax Free Bond-23FEB27 1000/ - 600 5.89 600 5.89
2 |8.20% Hudco Tax Free Bond-SMAR27 1000/- 132 1.36 132 1.36
3 |8.30% NHAI Tax Free Bond-25]AN27 1000/ - 1,931 19.35 1,931 19.35
4 18.50% IIFCL Tax Free Bond- 12 NOV 33 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
5 |8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-05FEB29 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
6 18.51% Hudco Tax Free Bond-250CT28 1000/ - 2,000 20.00 2,000 20.00
7 18.66% IIFCL Tax Free Bond-22JAN34 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
8 |8.67% NHPC Tax Free Bond-2NOV33 1000/- 805 8.05 805 8.05
9 8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-5FEB29 1000/ - 500 4.98 500 4.98
359.64 359.64
Total of Quoted Securities 7,161.97 3,651.12
Unquoted Equity Shares - Valued at Amortised Cost
1 Woaodside Fashion Timited 10/- 5,39,000 3,285 45 5,39,000 318573
2 |Bengal NRI Complex Limited n/- 7,722,500 68.25 7,272,500 68.25
Total of Unquoted Securities 3,353.70 3,253.98
its | (Bs.InLakhsl| No.oflnits |(R&InTakhsl
C | Invootments in Mufual Funds Valuod at FVTPL R No.of Unita
1 |ABSL Balanced Advantage Fund Growth = - - 1,36,904 99.04
2 |ABSL Equity Hybrid 95 Fund Growth 1020.4800 4,742.876 48.40 4,743 51.68
3 |Axis Global Innovation Fund of Fund Kegular Growth Y.3700 9,99,950.002 93.70 9,99,950 99.00
4 |Axis Mid Cap Fund - Regular Growth - - = 42,989 28.97
5 |Axis Growth Opportunities Fund - Regular Growth - - - 1,71,159 35.28
6 |Axis Small Cap Fund - Regular Growth - - - 73,374 45.06
7  |Axis Triple Advantage Fund - Regular Growth - - - 3,79,586 114.46
8 |HDEFC Flexi Cap Fund - Growth = - - 2,814 28.43
1 TIDIC T 6 ]nln O Wald Bddeaca 1T CF ?,4‘7‘()““ M4
10 |HDFC Mid Cap Opportunities Fund - Gr - - - 18,348 16.62
11 |HDFC Small Cap Fund - R-G = - - 23,424 16.61
12 |HDFC Top 100 Fund - Gr - - - 1,596 11.08
13 JICICI Prudential Technology Plan - Growth 132.0200 31,295.381 4132 31,295 50.88
14 |ICICI Prudential FMCG Plan - Growth - - = 15,213 49.98
15 JICICI Prudential Multi Assets Fund - Growth - - - 7,413 3218
16 |ICICI Prudential US Blue-chip Equity Fund - Gr - - - 55,714 2598
17 |ICICI Prudential Commodities Fund - Gr = s - 98,614 24.86
18 |ICICI Prudential NASDAQ 100 Index Fund - Gr 9.3362] 2,49,987.501 2334 2,49,988 24.77
19 |ICICI Prudential Banking & Financial Plan - Gr - - - 28,884 23.33
20 |ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Gr 321.1334 94,914.061 304.80 - -
21 |ICICI Prudential PSU Equity Fund - Gr 10.3900] 2,49,987.501 25.97 - -
22 |Nippon India Large Cap Fund - GrPlan Gr Option N - - 1,96,204 99.44
23 |lugppon it FlesnCap Fuad - Grawett #lan - - - 10,208,494/ 1us/8
24 |Nippon India Mulls Assel Lund - Growlh 1'an - - - 419,040 LL.L4
85/.84 1,U848.119
Total Investment (A+B+C) 11,053.20 7,973.19
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11

Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03 2022
(Rs.In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs)

Advance Taxes (Nel) . 161

Tolal = 1.61

Note 12

Provisions

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)

Conlingent Provision against Standard Asscls 275 +75

TOTAL 275 4.75

Note 13

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Liability
Changes in Fair Value of Investment 2.98 2286

Deferred Tax Assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Basc of PPE 1.09 1.15
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 1.89 21.71

The major compenents of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the vear ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Recognised/
E . reversed Recognised in .
rulars
Particulars Opening through Profit oc Closing Balance
and loss

(Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 115 {0.06) - 109

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
(a) Fair Value change in Investment (22.86) (0.26) 20.14 (2.98)

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (21.71) (0.32) 20.14 (1.89)

‘The major compenents of defrrred tax assets and labilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Recognised/
. 3 R — .
Particulars Opening lhr::lgel:s ;:) fit ecoglged . Closing Balance
and Inss

(Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs}
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 116 {0.01) - 115

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability

(a) Fair Value change in Investment (11,31) 333 (15.08) (2286)
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) {10.15) 352 (15.08) (21.71)
Reconciliation of fax exp and the acc ing profit iplied by tax rate:
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Profit Before Tax 2,637.51 52295
Tax Rate for Corporate Entity as per Income Tax Act,1961 2517% 2517%
Expected Tax Expense as per Income Tax Act,1961 668 84 131.62
Tax Effect of:
Expenses nat exempt from Tax 2040 242
Income exempt from Tax (38.52) (38.40)
Tax for earlier years 047y {0.59)
Deferred Tax Adjustments 032 (3.52)
Other Items {0.73) (1.29)
Total Tax Expense as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 649.84 90.23
Note 14
Other Non Financial Liabilities
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Liabilities for Expenscs 058 0387
Statutory Liabilities 0.71 0,69
TOTAL 1.29 1.55
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I NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STANDALQNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I

Note 15

Equity Share Capital

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Authorized share capital
50,00,000. ( P.Y. 90,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 cach 90000 900.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
9,52,595 ( P.Y. Y,52,595) Equity sharcs of Rs.10 cach fully paid up 95.26 95.26
Total Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up 95.26 95.26

Reconciliatinn of the shares outstinding at the heginning and at the end of the porting perivd

Equity shares 31.03.2023 310323022

No. {Rs, In Lakhs) No. {R= In Lakhs}
Al Lhe beginning of Lthe period 9,52,595 95.26 9,52,5% 9526
Issucd during, the period
i {ing at the end of the perind 952,595 95.26 952595 95.26

Terms/rights attached to pquity shares

The company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. On a show of hands, every member, present in person or by proxy, is entitled
Lo one vole and in casc of poll, the voting rights of every member shall be in proportion to his shares of the paid-up equity share capilal of the company

Thie comparty declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject Lo the approval of the shareholders in Lhe
imsuing Annual General Meeling,
7 Aha grent ot Qs an ar tho g e ot of pgitep sl il Teaiihal ive sasini asseis ol e g afiecdisiilidio ol all poeasntiol

amiiunts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of oguity shares held by the sharcholders

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares 31.03.2023 31032022
K No % N,

Hajesudrs Kumar Bachhawat 9.65 91931 9.65

Suretwdre Kumar Backhawal 909 BH.6IZ 9.09

Mahendrn Eamar Bahhuwiat 7 F1IH4 7.5

Prakash Bachhawal 785 74730 783

Divpak Bachhawal 583 55,500 583

Duaulat Financial Services {P) Ld 717 B8 717

Diveplok Securilies Limited 5393 36,430 393

Sighursl | rade & Hoiding Pyt L n 44675 521

Dietails of Shares held by Promoters

31.03.2023 J1.033022
Promoter name No. of Shares Tonfiatay No, of Shares %ol Y Changs during
shares shares the year

Fajendra Kumar Bachhawal 91,93 Bk 91,933 U963% (LN

Surendra Kumar Bachhawat 86,632 G090 86,632 i 0,00

Muhendra Kumar Bachhawal T2 TN TIIR4 7.59% (L.00'%

Surendra Kumar Bachhawat { RS Invistmenls) H5.3N1 165% 4431 465% 0.00%

Rajendra Kumar Bathhawal HUF 453600 458% 43,800 4.58% 0.00%

Dewrprab Bachhawal 500 5.83% 35,500 5.83% 0.00%

Prakush Bachhawal 74750 7.85% 74750 7.85% 0.00%

Aluok Bt hhawal 25,200 303% 28,900 3.03% (L00%

Sarnj Bachhawat 50 0.01% 50 (L0 % (L00%

Daulat Finaneial Services (P} Lid 63,300 63,300 TA7N X%

Diplok Secnrities 1 td 56450 56,450 593% 0.00%

Vinayak Dealer {I') Ltd 43,500 40,500 457% 0.00%

Dbl i deda ok Wi a7yl WA LN nEann Nan% 0.00%

Tuial 7,001,299 73.62% 209 T 0.00%

Note 16

Other Equity

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Retained Eamings 9,711.25 8,200.07
Securities Premium 356.00 356.00
Amalgamation Reserve 129.29 12929
Special Reserve 1,766.64 1,365.11
General Reserve 224.53 2376
Other Comprehensive Income 3012 214.78
TOTAL 12,217.84 10,289.02

Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Retained Earnings: Retained eamings are the profils that the Company has earned till dalc, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions
paid to shareholders.

b)Securilies Premium: Sccurilics premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013

¢)General Rescrve: General Reserve ate amounls set aside from retained profils as a reserve to be ulilised for permissible general purpose as per Law.

d) Reserve fund in terms of seclion 43-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 : Rescrve fund is crealed as per the terms of seclion 43-1C(1) of Lhe Rescrve Bank of
India Act, 1934 as a statulory reserve

¢)Other comprehensive income represents fair value recognilion and measurement of equily instruments through other comprehensive income,

1) Amalgamation Reserve : This Reserve was crealed on Lhe basis of the scheme of Amalygamation of Meadow Properties Pvi. Lid, Vasanl Lok Properties PvL. Lid, DAP
Developers Privale Limiled and DAP Constructions Pyt Ltd with the Company in the year ended 31st March 1999
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17
Interest Income on financial assets
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Interest Income :
On Tax Free Bond 30.68 34.90
On Others - Exempted 0.03 0.02
On Others 515.21 416.82
Total 545.92 451.75
Note 18
Dividend Income
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Dividend Income
Shares 2,218.70 15.22
Brookfield R.E.I.T- Exempted 0.11 0.22
Total 2,218.81 15.44
Note 19
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments - 9.14
Total - 9.14
Note 20
Other Income
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Profit/ (Loss) on disposal of Long term Investments
Shares
With STT 27.21 106.51
Mutual Fund
Profit on Mutual Fund- Long Term-with STT 37.65 -
Bond
Without STT - 048
Profit / (Loss) on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares
With STT 2.01 -
Mutual Fund
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - Without STT 15.70 28.27
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - With STT 7.12 20.72
Profit/(Loss) on Share Speculation - 1.29
Miscellaneous Income - 0.20
89.68 157.47

iy

4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 21
Net Loss on Fair Value Changes
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments 67.19 -
Total 67.19 -
Note 22
Employee Benefit expense
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Director Remuneration 30.00 30.00
Salarics and Allowances 23.07 20.56
Staff's Mediclaim Insurance Premium 0.13 0.16
Total 53.20 50.72
Note 23
Other expenses
Parliculars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Advertisement 0.31 0.30
AGM Expenses 0.28 0.18
Zar Expenses 132 110
CSR & Donation 14.00 6.50
Dieutal Charges 0.33 0.30
laling bees (VN Vi) UXVE)
Insurance Charges 0.12 013
Loss on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares With STT - 4.55
Late Fees on TDS 0.03 -
Interest on Income Tax 0.84 -
Internal Audit Fees 0.10 0.08
Secretarial & Professional Charges 6.28 371
Listing Fees 0.85 0.72
Accrued Interest paid on purchase of Bonds 21.71 28.80
Accrued Interest paid on purchase of NCD 25.29 5.63
Repair & Maintenance Charges 1.27 0.64
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.08 1.27
Rates & Taxes 0.25 0.25
Stamp Duty on Mutual Fund/Bond 0.00 0.17
STT Investment 0.11 0.65
Travelling & Conveyance 0.96 0.89
Contingent provision against Standard Assets created /(reversed) (2.00) 171
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 23 A) 110 0.94
Share Speculation Loss 0.00 -
Total 75.38 58.64
Note 23 A
Payments to the auditor
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
For Statutory Audit 0.50 0.50
For Tax Audit - -
For other certification work 0.60 0.44
Total 1.10 0.94
g— 'A\I_\
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No.24 Additional Disclosures
1 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

In respect of income tax demand amounting to Rs. 1.29/- Lakhs and Rs. 0.009/-Lakhs for the Assessment vear 2017-2018 and 2019-2020 respectively. The company has already filed
appeal/rectification with the respective authority.

2  Operating Segmenl:
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments of the Company.

As per requirement of Ind-AS 108 " Segment Reporting" no disclosures are required to be made since the Company's activities consist of a single business segment.

3 There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and also at 31st March 2023.
This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on (e
basis of information available with the company. (31st March 2022- Nil)

4 Earning Per Share:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Computation of Earnings per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted) 2022-23 2021-22
0] Basic
(a) (i) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
(ii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
(iii} Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
(iv) Face Value of each Equity Share (In ) 10 10
(b} Amount of Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders 1,928.82 725.37
(c) Basic Earnings per Equity Share [(b)/ (a)(iii)] 202.48 76.15
()] Diluted
(a) Dilutive Potential Equity Shares 9,52,595 9,52,595
(b) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share [Same as (I)(c) above] 202.48 76.15
5 Related Party Disclosures:
A) List of related parties where control exists
S.N Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 Woodside Fashions Limited Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Managing Director
3 Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
4 Prakash Bachhawat Director
5 Sarla Baid
6 Hemraj Kathotia N
= Kamal Singh Jain Independent Director
8 Rajni Mishra Company Secretary
9 Pradip Kumar Bera Chief Financial Officer
10 Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Relative of Key Management Personnel
B) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
S.N Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 Woodside Fashions Limited Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bachhawat
3 Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Key Management Personnel
4 Prakash Bachhawat
5 J B Leasing Pvt Ltd. Parties where Control exists
6 Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Relative of Key Management Personnel

I,..'- i ' /
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C) Transactions during the year with related parties:
(Rs. In Laklis)

o Nature of Transactions with Parti here Control exists | M Key R:/]lflh\'e of Key Qulstanding  as on
N Related Party arties where Control exists anagement anagement 31st March'2023
Personnel Personnel
56.57/-
Purch, 1t tments (Sh = - =
1 urchase of Investments (Shares) e
2 Sale of Investments (Shares} i i 50.81/- i
(234.44/-)
3 Purchase of Investments (Debentures) 500.00/~
(NIL/-)
4 Director's Remuneration = 30.00/- c :
(30.00/-)

** Previous Year's figures are given in bracket

10

1

12

13

14

As per notification no, RBI/DNBR/2016-17/44 issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Contingent Provision against Standard Assets have been reversed by Rs..2.00/- Lakhs during the year.(created
in P.Y. Rs.1.71/- Lakhs)

22,900 Shares of Tata Steel Limited shown under Non-current Investment in the financial statements is vet to be transferred in the name of the company due to litigation with respect to ownership
of shares.

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non - Banking Financial Company as required in terms of Paragraph 16 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September (1. 2016 is as per Annexure 1
The Board of directors decided in their meeting dated 07/12/2022 that doubtful loan amounting to Rs. 56.25/- Lakhs to be treated as bad debts since the same is not recoverable from the parties,
Necessary effect has been given in the accounts under the review,

The Company has principal investments of Rs.400.57/- Lakhs in the Preference shares of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited which are accounted at Amortised Cost as per Ind A5
109 - Financial Tnstrument The rampany (T & FSTtd ) is classified as Red Fnhties hy Resoluntion Consultant af Tnfrastriactiure Teasing & Finanrial Services Timited  Arcardingly the rampany
had made provision for fair value loss of Rs. 400.57/- Lakhs during the previous year ended 31.03.2020 and the same was shown as exceptional item.

Details of transaction with struck off Companies

Name of Strack . . Balance | Relationship with the Struck
Nature of transaction with Struck-off Company Outstan| off company, if any, to be
off Company q q
ding disclosed
MA Invactmont in Focuritioc Mil RIA:
NA Receivables Mil NA
ML Dayables Mil A
NA Share held by stuck off company Nil NA
NA Other Outstanding Balance (to be specified) Nil NA

The Company has incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure during the year as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March,2023 | 31st March,2022

Gross Amount required to be spent

by the Company 672 6.46
Amount spent by the Company as
CSR Donation for promotion of 14.00 6.50

education.

1) There has been no shortfall in amount required to be spent for CSR activities during the current reporting period year.
2) The CSR donation is in support of institution involved in promotion of Education.

Particulars In Cash Xehiojbepaidiin Total
Cash
(i) Conotruction,/acquicition of any accat Nil Mil Mil
{ Previous Year ) Nil Nil Nil
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 14.00 Lakhs Nil Nil
{ Piivivis Yiai ) 0.30 Laklis I i

Deferred tax :
As per Ind AS 12, the Company has deferred tax liabilities due to difference in depreciation as per Companies Act and as per Income tax Act, MAT credit entitlement & Fair Value Change in
investment. (Refer Note. 13 to the financial statements)

Useful Life of Property, Plant & Equip is per Companies Act 2013 are given below:
Assets Useful life Remaining Life
Building 60 years 36.9
Motor Car 8 years 241
Office Equipment's 5 years Nil

-
&
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@)

(@)

(-

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

15 Financial Instrument related disclosures

Financial instruments- Accounting, Classification and Fair Value Measurement

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not

include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
A [Financial Assets
1 | Investments 6,687.32 652.54 3,713.34 3,539.85 819.72 3,613.62
2 | Cash and cash equivalents - - 40.10 - - 472.39
3 |Trade Receivables - - - - - -
4 |Loans - - 1,100.06 - 5 1,901.30
5 | Other financial assets - - 121.04 - - 61.33
Total financial assets 6,687.32 652.54 4,974.54 3,539.85 819.72 6,048.64
B |Financial liabilities
1| Borrowings - - - - - -
2 | Trade payables - - - - - -
3 | Other financial liabilities(Current) - - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - - - - -

B. Measurement of fair values

Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value
and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Fair values are determined in whole or in
part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are
they based on available market data.

/)aluation technique used to determine fair value

Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgments to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all
financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each
reporting date.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
a. the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis/ other method

b. the use of quoted market price
(Rs. In Lakhs)

. 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Investments measured at FVTPL 6,687.32 - - 3,539.85 - -
Investments measured at FVOCI 652.54 - - 819.72 - -
Total 7,339.86 = - 4,359.57 -

The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to short term nature.

Notes:
1 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022.
o Costs of certain unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possib]?
measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. / i

i.n.r \faiﬁe
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Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

16 Finacial risk management

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks
and credit risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing
the Company's financial risk management framework.

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk refers ta visk that a conmterparty will defanlt an its cantractnal nhligatinns resnlting in finanrial Inss tn
the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, bank balances and loans.

At each reporting date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on
Lustotival bewd, idusliy practices ard ie busiuess enviioiunend ine wldch the Cuwpdity uperdles.

Credil risk arising from balances with banks is limiled because e counterpailies are baiks willihigl aedil
worthiness.

Credit risk arising from loans given/inter-corporate deposits (ICD) are limited due to due to the Borrower's
profiles and historical experience of collection. All such ICDs are reviewed and assessed on a quarterly basis.

(B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its
liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and
stressed conditions.

I'he Company maintained a cautious biquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended
Al Marcl, 2023 and 31at Maicl, 2022. Cash (low fiom uprraling aclivilies provides he fuids o sevvice e
financial liabilitics on a day to day busis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it hay
sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus cash generated, over and
above the amount required for waorking capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as
cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing NCDs, bonds and
other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on investmentsy
while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

(C) Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk of loss of future earnings/future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a
financial instrument. The price of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in market prices, equity
prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. The goal of market risk management
is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits.

(i) Currency Risk is not material, as the Company’s primary business activities are within India and does not have
any exposure in foreign currency.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to the interest rate risk due to its
investment in fixed rate instruments which are being carried at cost and not subject to interest rate risk.
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Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

17 Capital management
Regulatory capital

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to time.
The Companies regulatory capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

Tier 1 Capital includes:

Tier 1 Capital includes:

1) Ordinary share capital,

2) Securities premium reserve,

3) Retained eamings,

4) Cummulative compulsorily convertible preference Shares (CCCPS),
5) Debenture redemption reserve
6) Perpetual debt

7) Special reserve

8) Retained earnings

9) Special reserve.

10) General reserve

Tier 1 Capital does not include unrealised fair value gain/loss booked for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss statement and shares
option outstanding account Following items are deducted from Tier I

a) Intangibles
b) Deferred revenue expenditure for raising borrowings
[5] Neferred tax assets

Tier II capital includes

1) subordinated debt
2) impairment allowance provisioning for stage 1 and stage 2 financial assets to the extent the same does not exceed 1.25% of Risk weighted assets,
3) perpetual debt to the extent not eligible for Tier L
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars. Asat
Asal 31.03.2023')  31.03.2022
Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share capital 95.26 95.26
Securities premium reserve 356.00 356.00
Amalgamation Reserve 129.29 129.29
Retained eamings 9,711.25 8,200.07
Spedal reserve 1,766.64 1,365.11
General reserve 224.53 23.76
Other Comprehensive Income 30.12 214.78
Less:

- Deferred TAX Asset (1.89) (21.71)
Tier I Capital 12.314.98 10,405.98
Tier IX Capital - -
Tier I + Tier I Capital 12,314.98 10,405.98

18 Others

(i) We are not aware of any violations or possible violations of laws or regulations the effect of which should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or
as a basis for recording a loss contingency. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with or deficiencies in
financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

(ii) Based on the written representations (in Form MBP-1) obtained from the directors and taken on record by the Board of directors, we confirm that none of the
directors is disqualified under section 164 of the Companies Act 2013 as at the Balance Sheet date.

(iii) No director of the Company is holding any office or place of profit, without the consent of the Company accorded by a special resolution. Also, no partner or
relative of such director, no firm in which such director, or a relative of such director, is a partner, no private company of which such director is a director or
member, and no director or manager of such a private company, is holding any office or place of profit (under the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013).

(iv) Transactions of the Company which are represented merely by the book entries are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

(v) The transactions that need to he-efitared Irrthe register in pursuance of section 189 of the companies act, 2013 during the year have been so entered.
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Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)
(vi) It has not incurred any cash losses in this financial year and in the financial year immediately preceding this financial year also.

(vii) All the assessments completed during the year have been duly informed to the auditor and there is no such surrender or disclosures of unrecorded income arised
to any assessment year under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The company has neither been declared as a willful defaulter nor has received any show cause notice from any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(ix) The company has implemented internal control systems with regard to operation of and accounting and that are designed to prevent and detect frauds and errors.
The company has disclosed to the auditor all significant facts relating to any frauds or suspected frauds known to management that may have affected the entity.
The auditor has not filed ADT 4 during the year.

(x) The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year.

(xi) The company has not made any transactions during the year with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

(xii) The company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

19 Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator Cu.t.mnt l’refnous % Variance Rea..son b
Period Period Variance
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) | 1ie 1+ Tier Il |Risk Weighted 1.26 1.03 21.35% NA
Capital Assets
Tier [ CRAR TierICapital | ok Weighted 1.26 1.03 21.35% N.A
Assets
Tier Il CRAR Tier Il Capital | ok Weighted N.A N.A N.A NA
Assets
M "
Stack of High ;r;"’é Nop i
Tiquidity Cverage Ratin ity Tiqwid |- R f"j“ ¥ N A N A NA N.A
Assets e enl
calendar days

20 The previous period’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to correspond to those of the current year. Amounts
and other disclosures for the preceding year are inclinded as an integral part of the rrent year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts

and other disclosures relating to the current year.

As per our Kepott of even date attached.
For |BS & Company For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure 1

SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.23 OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

PARTICULARS (Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue

LIABILITIES SIDE :

Loans and Advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures: Secured — -

Unsecured = =

(Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) - e
(b) Deferred Credits - -
(c) Term Loans - -
(d) Inter-Corporate Loans & Borrowings - -
(e) Commercial Paper - -
(f) Public Deposits - _
(g) Other Loans (Specify nature) = —

@) Break-up of 1(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a) Interms of Unsecured debentures - -
(b) In the form of parlly secured debenlures i.e. debenlures where there is a shorlfall

in the value of security = o
(¢) Other Public Depusils - -

ASSETS SIDE : AMOUNT OUTSTANDING

&) Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables
[Other than those induded in (4) below T

(a) Secured —
(b) Unsecured 1100.06

Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets
“) counting towards AFC activities :

(i) Lease Assets including Lease Rentals under Sundry Debtors :
(a) Financial Lease -
(b) Operating Lease .
(ii) Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under Sundry Debtors :
(a) Assets on Hire -
(b) Repossessed Assets -
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(@) Loans where assets have been repossessed -
(b) Loans other than (a) above --

(5) Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :
1. Quoted :

(i) Shares: (a)Equity =

(b) Preference =

(ii) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds --

(iv) Government Securities -

(v) Others (please specify) -

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity --

(b) Preference -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds --

(iv) Government Securities — -
(v) Others At 5 =

Contd........




SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2022 OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

Long Term Investments :

1. Quoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity 652.54
(b) Preference -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 4869.57
(iif) Units of Mutual Funds 537.53
(iv) Government Securities 1639.86
(v) Others —
2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity 203.00

(b) Preference -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds —
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds -
(iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others (Gold Coins) ==

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Category Amount net of provision
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - —
(b) Companies in the same group == = =
(c) Other related parties - == —
2. Other than related parties - 1100.06 1100.06
TOTAL: - 1100.06 1100.06

(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
- unquoted) :

Market Value/ Book Value
Category Break-up or fair (Net of
Value or NAV Provisions)
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b) Companies in the same group 134.75 134.75
(c) Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parlies 7,767.75 7,767.75
TOTAL: - . 7.902.50 7,902.50
(8) Other Information
Particulars Amount

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties -
(b) Other than related Parties -
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(2) Related Parlies -
(b) Other than related Parties -
(iif) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts —

For ].B.S & Company - For and on Behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
!-W L o —
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(Partner) Director Director
Membership No. 312458 ——— _— . ‘ DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
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FORM AOC -1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures

PART "A" - Subsidiaries

SI. No.

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary

N.A.

Reporting Period

Reporting Currency

Reserves & Surplus

Total Assets

1
2
3
4
5|Share Capital
6
7l
8

Total Liabilities

9|Investments

10| Turnover

11|Profit Before Taxation

12|Provision for Taxation

13|Profit After Taxation

=

14|Proposed Dividend

15| % of Shareholding

1. Name of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : None
Name of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : None

PART "B" - Associates and Joint Venturcs

Slalenenl pusuant tu Sectivn 129 (3) ol the CUulPdlliEb Acl, 2013 1elated tu Assuciale Cumpauies and Juinl Veulures :

l\sli). Name of Associate Woodside Fashions Limited
1 |Latest Audited Balance Sheet date | 31st March 2023
o |Shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end
No. of Shares 5,39,000
Amount of Investment in Associate (Rs. In lakhs) 1341.75
Extend of Holding % 23.96%
3 |Description of how there is significant influence | Due to Sharcholding
4 |Reason why the Associate is not consolidated | N.A.
5 [Networth attributable to Shareholdoing as per latest audited Balance Sheet (Rs. In lakhs) | 3,247.77
6 |Profit/Loss for the year (Rs. in lakhs) 416.17
i. Considered in Consolidation 99.72
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 316.45

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations : None
2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year : None

As per our report of even date

For J.B.S. & Company For and on behalf of the Board
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